PDC Complaint – Tahoma School District – Appendix



Political Committee Registration

C1_{PC}

100809165 AMENDS 4001898838

(360) /53-1111 Toll Free 1-877-601-2828				(1/12)	AMENDS 8901898838
Committee Name (Include sponsor in committee na official name. Do not use abbreviations or acronyms WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIA	in this box.)			Acronym: WEA-	-PAC
				Telephone: 253-	-941-6700
Mailing Address					
PO BOX 9100				Fax: 253-	-946-7603
City	County	Z	ip + 4		
FEDERAL WAY	KING	9	8063	E-mail: GMANS	ELL@WASHINGTONEA.ORG
NEW OR AMENDED REGISTRATION?		COMMITTEE STATUS			
NEW. Complete entire form.AMENDS previous report. Complete entire for	m	☑ Continuing (On-going;☐ election ye	not established in anti- ar only. Date of genera		
AMENDO previous report. Complete entire for	11.	(Year)	ar only. Date or genera	ar or special election.	
What is the purpose or description of the committee	ee?				
☐ Bona Fide Political Party Committee - official s of the names of the candidates you support.	state or county	central committee or legisla	ative district committee.	If you are not suppor	ting the entire party ticket, attach a list
☐ Ballot Committee - Initiative, Bond, Levy, Recal	l, etc. Name	or description of ballot meas	ure:		Ballot Number FOR AGAINST
■ Other Political Committee - PAC, caucus commame: WASHINGTON EDUCATION			elated or affiliated with	a business, associatio	n, union or similar entity, specify
For single election-year only committees (not con(a) one or more candidates? Yes No		mittees): Is the committee an a list of each candidate's n		political party affiliation	on.
(b) the entire ticket of a political party?	☐ No	If yes, identify the party:			
2. Related or affiliated committees. List name, addre	ess and relation	onship.			
3. How much do you plan to spend during this entire					Continued on attached sheet.
MINI REPORTING Mini Reporting is selected. No more than than \$500 in the aggregate will be accept the Accept than Manager's or Media Contact's Name a	ed from any o		i un report	ing is selected. The f	
4. Campaign managers of media Contacts Name a	nd Address			Te	lephone Number:
5. Treasurer's Name and Address. Does treasurer part page for details. List deputy treasurers on at		ninisterial functions? Yes		n attached about	nytime Telephone Number:
ARMAND L TIBERIO P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY	WA 9806	3-9100		-	33 3 2 2 3 7 3 3
 Persons who perform only ministerial functions on persons. See WAC 390-05-243 and next page fo JENA H MANSELL, WEA/NEA PAC 	behalf of this r details.	committee and on behalf of	•		☐ Continued on attached sheet.
7. Committee Officers and other persons who author ARMAND L TIBERIO, SECRETARY, KIM MEAD, WEA-PAC CHAIR, P.C STEPHEN MILLER, VICE-CHAIR,	TREASUR	RER, P.O. BOX 9	100, FEDERAL AY WA 98063-	WAY WA 9800 9100	Continued on attached sheet.
3. Campaign Bank or Depository		E	Branch	(City
BANK OF AMERICA			EDERAL WAY		EDERAL WAY
 Campaign books must be open to the public by an holidays. In the space below, provide contact info post office box or an out-of-area address. 	rmation for sc	heduling an appointment an	d the address where th		
Street Address, Room Number, Cit 32032 WEYERHAEUSER WAY SOUT	-	. •	pie for inspection		
In order to make an appointment, contact the cam			765-7021 253	-946-7603 A	IVERSON@WASHINGTONEA.
 Eligibility to Give to Political Committees and must receive \$10 or more each from ten W 	d State Office ashington Sta	e Candidates: A committee ate registered voters before	e 11. Signature and and correct to the l		fy that this statement is true, complete
contributing to a Washington State political com prior to making a contribution to a state offi	ce candidate	your committee must have	e Committee	Freasurer's Signatur	e Date
received contributions of \$10 or more each fror voters.	n at least ten	Washington State registered	ARMAND L	TIBERIO	01-18-2018

☒ A check here indicates your awareness of and pledge to comply with these provisions.

Absence of a check mark means your committee does not qualify to give to Washington State political committees and/or state office candidates.

MARTHA PATTERSON

Name WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE

2. Related or affiliated committees	S		
5. Deputy Treasurers Name and	Address.		
or Deputy Treasurers Hame and	, tad. 555.		
6. Persons who perform only min	isterial functions, Name, Title a	nd Address.	
7. Committee Officers, List Name	e, Title and Address.		
SHAWN LEWIS	POLITICAL ACTION	D O DOV 0100	, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
	BOARD MANAGER		, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100 , FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
JENN BLACK	BOARD MANAGER BOARD MANAGER	-	
LEANN BLANCO		_	FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
TRACEY DRUM	BOARD MANAGER		FEDERAL WAY WA 98053-9100
SHANNON ERGUN	BOARD MANAGER	_	FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
MORGAN GALLE	BOARD MANAGER	_	FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
BARB GAPPER	BOARD MANAGER		FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
JAMES GOW	BOARD MANAGER		FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
RYAN GRANT	BOARD MANAGER	_	FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
JARED KINK	BOARD MANAGER	_	FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
PAM KRUSE	BOARD MANAGER		FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
ADAM MACDONALD	BOARD MANAGER		FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
CHASE PARSLEY	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100,	, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100

BOARD MANAGER

P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100

Name WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE

7. Committee Officers, List Name, Title and Address.

CATHLEEN PETERSON	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
LINDA PETERSON	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
SHELLEY HOULE	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
TODD MCLAUGHLIN	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
MAUREEN RAMOS	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
MICHAEL TAMAYO	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
DIANE SUNDVIK	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
CONNIE NOAKES	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
KARI VAN NOSTRAN	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
NICOLE WAY	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
ADAM WHITE	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
HEATHER YUCKERT	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100
NATE ZIEMKOWSKI	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY WA 98063-9100

Amendment to C1PC Political Comm Registration - WEA-PAC

Gena Mansell [WA] reported 3 days ago (Fri, 16 Mar at 5:43 PM) via Email

To: pdc@pdc.wa.gov

Cc: aiverson@washingtonea.org, mgawley@washingtonea.org, mknight@washingtonea.org, sboe@washingtonea.org

Hello,

WEA-PAC needs to amend its C1PC Political Committee Registration to include a new Committee Officers name, with no actual change to the information on the form submitted on January 18, 2018. The new Officers name is: Raquel Cortez

Please attach the following list of names (attached), to the 2018 Washington Education Association Political Action Committees C1PC Form (attached for reference), so that the public will be able to view the additional Committee Officers name/information.

Thank you,

Gena H. Mansell WEA Accounting & Public Policy Center WEA/NEA PAC Accounting Specialist Phone: (253) 765-7013

Fax: (253) 765-7013

2 Attachments



2018 C1PC Po... (26.2 KB)



Name WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE

7. Committee Officers, List Name, Title and Address.

CATHLEEN PETERSON	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
LINDA PETERSON	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
SHELLEY HOULE	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
TODD MCLAUGHLIN	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
MAUREEN RAMOS	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
MICHAEL TAMAYO	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
DIANE SUNDVIK	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
CONNIE NOAKES	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
KARI VAN NOSTRAN	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
NICOLE WAY	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
ADAM WHITE	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
HEATHER YUCKERT	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
NATE ZIEMKOWSKI	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
RAQUEL CORTEZ	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100

Amendment to C1PC Political Comm Registration - WEA-PAC

Gena Mansell [WA] reported 15 minutes ago (Tue, 15 May at 4:35 PM) via Email

To: pdc@pdc.wa.gov

Cc: aiverson@washingtonea.org, mgawley@washingtonea.org, mknight@washingtonea.org, slewis@washingtonea.org, rregan...

Hello,

WEA-PAC needs to amend its C1PC Political Committee Registration to include a new Committee Officers name, with no actual change to the information on the form submitted on January 18, 2018. The new Officers name is: James (Rod) Regan.

Please attach the following list of names (attached), to the 2018 Washington Education Association Political Action Committees C1PC Form (attached for reference), so that the public will be able to view the additional Committee Officers name/information.

Thank you,

Gena H. Mansell WEA Accounting & Public Policy Center WEA/NEA PAC Accounting Specialist Phone: (253) 765-7013

Fax: (253) 946-7603

2 Attachments



2018 C1PC Po... (26.9 KB)



Name WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE

7. Committee Officers, List Name, Title and Address.

CATHLEEN PETERSON	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
LINDA PETERSON	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
SHELLEY HOULE	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
TODD MCLAUGHLIN	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
MAUREEN RAMOS	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
MICHAEL TAMAYO	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
DIANE SUNDVIK	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
CONNIE NOAKES	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
KARI VAN NOSTRAN	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
NICOLE WAY	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
ADAM WHITE	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
HEATHER YUCKERT	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
NATE ZIEMKOWSKI	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
RAQUEL CORTEZ	BOARD MANAGER	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100
JAMES (Rod) REGAN	DIR. ADVOCACY&ORG	P.O. BOX 9100, FEDERAL WAY, WA 98063-9100



SOUNDVIEW UNISERY COUNCIL

The best UniServ in the UniVers



ABOUT US

LOCALS EVENTS / ETC. MEMBER BENEFITS NEWS STUFF UNION DUES

Why do I need to be interested in politics?

This ability to recognize the way things need to be done in order to ensure success in public education is as important as your daily interactions with colleagues, parents, principals, supervisors, and the superintendent. Here are a few reasons how politics affect your life daily:



WEA-PAC...

- regives us a voice to fight for increased education funding, higher school quality and improved
- helps to elect candidates who will put children and public education first.
- pives us a strong voice in the debate over key issues including funding, class size, compensation and accountability
- is a powerful voice in lobbying for the right kind of education reform. By being members of WEA-PAC we can work together to help children, strengthen our schools and improve compensation. Remember, recommendations are based on substantive educational issues only.
- supports activities to help protect the interests of education employees, and give us a better chance of winning improved compensation, health benefits and protecting collective bargaining rights.

YOU IN POLITICS!

2014 voter-approved I-1351 for smaller class sizes! You successfully collected over 300,000 signatures to get Initiative 1351 onto the ballot. Additionally, you successfully connected with voters through door belling and phonebanking to get out the vote to pass I-1351. This is now law!

Statewide one day walk outs! In 2015, we have been standing side by side with community members taking an incredible stand for students by walking out against the Legislature's failure to adequately address smaller class sizes, health care and educator compensation. As I'm writing this, elected officials are in their second special session in Olympia struggling to fully fund our public education system and showing a shocking display of politics over policy.

Election 2012 a decidedly pro-education victory! 80% of our Washington Education Association Political Action Committee's (WEAPAC) pro-education endorsed candidates were elected during this last general election. The legislative legislative session news and how it will affect you and your job or you can text OurVoice at 41411.

WHAT IS WEA-PAC?

WEA-PAC is Washington Education Association's Political Action Committee. WEA-PAC supports candidates (school board, senators, state representatives, governor and more), regardless of party, who champion the needs of public education. Based on input from local WEA-PAC members, WEA-PAC Board Managers meet and determine how the political candidates stand on the issues that affect our members, our schools and our students.

We look for strong candidates who are willing to stand up for public education.

Is the politics in Olympia frustrating? Yes. It's also a great reminder that we need to elect candidates based on their support for our schools and students. We need candidates who will advocate for a well-funded education system as well as hold the line on threats to educators, students and public schools. We have school board and other local races up for election.

WHO CAN JOIN?

WEAPAC collects voluntary contributions and uses those funds for political purposes including, but not limited to, making contributions to and expenditures on behalf of pro-public education candidates in the state of Washington.

Making a contribution is neither a condition of employment nor membership in the Association, and members have the right to refuse to contribute. WEA-PAC contributions are not deductible as charitable contributions for federal tax purposes.

So, thank you to WEAPAC members. By being a member of WEA-PAC you help elect the best candidates running for office.

WEA-PAC PAYROLL DEDUCTION

- 1. How does WEA-PAC payroll deduction work? Simply sign the bottom of the WEA-PAC Payroll Deduction Authorization form and mail it to Jo Wood at Soundview or turn in to your building rep.
- 2. How much do I have deducted? The payroll deduction is \$27.00 per year (\$2.25 per month for 12 months) no more, no less. These deductions are ongoing year after year until you notify WEA and your school district to discontinue.
- 3. When do my WEA-PAC payroll deductions begin? You can file a WEA-PAC payroll deduction authorization at any time. The payroll deduction amount is never retroactive or prorated; you pay \$2.25 per month no matter what time of year you sign
- 4. Am I required to report my WEA-PAC payroll contribution? No. WEA will provide contributors' names to the PDC (Public Disclosure Commission) as required by law.



PAGE 1 / 6 -

FEC FORM 1	STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION								Offic	ce Use	Only			'	
NAME OF COMMITTEE (in	full)	(Check	if name		le:If typing	g, type	1:	2FE	4M5						
NEA Fund)									
ADDRESS (number a	nd street)	1201 16th Stree	et NW Ste 418												
(Check if address is changed)															
		Washington	<u> </u>				١	DC		2003	6		-L		
		CITY ▲					Sī	ATE 4	A			ZIP	COE	DE ▲	
COMMITTEE'S E-MA	AIL ADDRES	SS													
(Check if a is changed		jtakacs@ne	a.org												
		Optional Secon	nd E-Mail Add	lress											
(Check if a is changed		N/A 													
2. DATE 0		D / Y Y Y Y 2016	Y												
3. FEC IDENTIFIC	CATION NU	MBER ►	C co	00003251											
4. IS THIS STATEM	MENT	NEW (N)	OR	×	AMENE	DED (A)									
I certify that I have e	examined th	is Statement and	d to the best	of my kno	wledge ar	nd belief	it is tr	ue, co	rrect	and o	compl	ete.			
Type or Print Name	of Treasurer	Michael McPhe	erson												
Signature of Treasure	er <i>Micha</i>	el McPherson		[E	lectronicall <u></u>	y Filed]	Date	e	M = N		05		Y	2016	
NOTE: Submission of		ous, or incomplet								the p	enalti	es of	2 U.S	S.C. {	§437g.
Office Use Only				Fe To	or further in deral Election Il Free 800- cal 202-694	on Commis 424-9530		::			FEC (Revi				

-	
FEC F	orm 1 (Revised 02/2009) Page 2
	COMMITTEE
Candidat	e Committee:
(a)	This committee is a principal campaign committee. (Complete the candidate information below.)
(b)	This committee is an authorized committee, and is NOT a principal campaign committee. (Complete the candidate information below.)
Name of Candidate	<u> </u>
Candidate Party Affilia	tion Office Sought: House Senate President District
(c)	This committee supports/opposes only one candidate, and is NOT an authorized committee.
Name of Candidate	
Party Co	mmittee:
(d)	(National, State (Democratic, This committee is a or subordinate) committee of the Republican, etc.) Part
Political	Action Committee (PAC):
(e) X	This committee is a separate segregated fund. (Identify connected organization on line 6.) Its connected organization is
	Corporation Corporation w/o Capital Stock X Labor Organization
	Membership Organization Trade Association Cooperative
	In addition, this committee is a Lobbyist/Registrant PAC.
(f)	This committee supports/opposes more than one Federal candidate, and is NOT a separate segregated fund or part committee. (i.e., nonconnected committee)
	In addition, this committee is a Lobbyist/Registrant PAC.
	In addition, this committee is a Leadership PAC. (Identify sponsor on line 6.)
Joint Fun	draising Representative:
(g)	This committee collects contributions, pays fundraising expenses and disburses net proceeds for two or more political committees/organizations, at least one of which is an authorized committee of a federal candidate.
(h)	This committee collects contributions, pays fundraising expenses and disburses net proceeds for two or more political committees/organizations, none of which is an authorized committee of a federal candidate.
Cor	nmittees Participating in Joint Fundraiser
1.	FEC ID number
2.	FEC ID number
3.	FEC ID number
4.	

FEC Form 1 (Revised 0	2/2009)	Page 3
Write or Type Committee Name		
NEA Fund for C	hildren and Public Education	
6. Name of Any Connected O	rganization, Affiliated Committee, Joint Fundraising Representative, or Leade	rship PAC Sponsor
National Education Ass	sociation	
Mailing Address	1201 16th Street NW	
	Washington DC 20036	ZID CODE
Relationship: X Connected	CITY STATE Organization Affiliated Committee Joint Fundraising Representative	ZIP CODE Leadership PAC Sponsor
 Custodian of Records: Ident books and records. 	tify by name, address (phone number optional) and position of the person in p	possession of committee
Full Name Lisa Robilla Full Name Mailing Address	1201 16th St. NW Suite 510	
	Washington DC 20036	;
Title or Position	CITY STATE	ZIP CODE
Custodian of Records		822 7336
3. Treasurer: List the name and any designated agent (e.g., as	address (phone number optional) of the treasurer of the committee; and the ssistant treasurer).	name and address of
Full Name Michael Mc	Pherson	
Mailing Address	1201 16th Street NW Ste 418	
	Washington DC 20036 CITY STATE	ZIP CODE
Title or Position Treasurer		822 7179

FEC FOIII I (F	Revised 02/2009)	Page 4
Full Name of Designated		
Agent		
Mailing Address		
	CITY STATE	ZIP CODE
Title or Position		
	Telephone number	
		olds accounts ronts
Banks or Other Depo	ositories: List all banks or other depositories in which the committee deposits funds, h	olds accounts, rents
safety deposit boxes of	or maintains funds.	olus accounts, rents
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Depos	or maintains funds. sitory, etc.	olus accounts, Tents
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Depos	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank	
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Depos	or maintains funds. sitory, etc.	
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Depos	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank	
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Depos	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank	
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Depos	Sitory, etc. &T Bank 25 South Charles St. Baltimore MD 2120	1
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Deposition Mailing Address	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank 25 South Charles St. Baltimore CITY STATE	
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Depos	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank 25 South Charles St. Baltimore CITY STATE	1
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Deposition Mailing Address	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank 25 South Charles St. Baltimore CITY STATE	1
Safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Deposition Mailing Address Name of Bank, Deposition Name	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank 25 South Charles St. Baltimore CITY STATE	1
safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Deposition Mailing Address	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank 25 South Charles St. Baltimore CITY STATE	1
Safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Deposition Mailing Address Name of Bank, Deposition Name	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank 25 South Charles St. Baltimore CITY STATE	1
Safety deposit boxes of Name of Bank, Deposition Mailing Address Name of Bank, Deposition Name	or maintains funds. sitory, etc. &T Bank 25 South Charles St. Baltimore CITY STATE	1

: 97 'A = G7 9 @ G B9 CI G'H9 LH'F9 @ 5 H98 'HC'5 'F9 DCF HZ G7 < 98 I @ 'CF' + H9 A = N5 H= CB

Form/Schedule: F1A Transaction ID:

This Statement of Organization is being amended to report a new Custodian of Records.

Form/Schedule: Transaction ID:

FORM 1S -STATEMENT OF ORGANIZATION (Supplemental Page)

FEC Form 1G (Revised 06	5/2011)		Page 6
Banks or Other Depositories: safety deposit boxes or maintain Name of Bank, Depository, etc.	List all banks or other depositories in which th s funds.	e committee deposits fund	s, holds accounts, rents
للللل			
Mailing Address			
L			
L		ليا ليي	لــــا-لـــــا
	CITY 🙇	STATE △	ZIP CODE 🛕
Name of Any Connected Organ	nization, Affiliated Committee, Joint Fundrais	ing Representative, or Le	[ADDITIONAL] adership PAC Sponsor
Mailing Address	1201 16th Street NW Suite 418		
l I	Washington		20036
	CITY▲	STATE 4	ZIP CODE
Relationship: Connected Organization	X Affiliated Committee Joint Fundrais	ing Representative	_eadership PAC Sponsor
Designated Agent			[ADDITIONAL]
Full Name			
Mailing Address			
•			
			_
Title or Position ₩	CITY &	STATE	ZIP CODE &
		Telephone number	
Joint Fundraiser Participant			[ADDITIONAL]
للللللللللل		FEC ID number	

NEWS ABOUT THE NEA FUND

The NEA Fund is our voice in Washington-it speaks on behalf of our 3.2 million members from all 51 affiliates of the National Education Association. As the NEA's national PAC, the NEA Fund provides direct financial support to recommended candidates for President, the U.S. House, and the U.S. Senate who will fight to support teachers, staff, and students and improve public education.

The NEA Fund also supports pro-public education candidates in gubernatorial and other important state races as well as making independent expenditures asking people to vote for or against candidates based on their position on public education.



Every member who contributes to the NEA Fund does so voluntarily.

Every dollar contributed to a candidate, a political party, or independent expenditures is voluntarily given. NEA does not use dues dollars for this purpose. Just as the NEA Fund relies on small contributions from thousands of members, the NEA candidate recommendation process is driven by NEA membership. NEA never recommends or endorses a candidate for federal office without the support of State Association leaders.

Your Voice For Transforming Public Policy

The NEA Fund website is open to NEA members, Executive and Administrative staff, and members of their families only.



The NEA Fund also supports pro-public education candidates in gubernatorial and other important state races as well as making independent expenditures asking people to vote for or against candidates based on their position on public education.



© 2018 NEA Fund for Children & Public Education

About | Candidates | Presidential | News | Contact Us | Donate | GO Pages | Terms of Use | Privacy Statement | Support: neahqhelp@nea.org



· . .





AUTHORIZATION FOR POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Name (First, MI, Last) Jam	Attickman	Home email		
Home Address (Street, Route or I	Зох)	<u> </u>	Apt	
City		State State	Zip_	
Social Security Number: (Enter last four digits)	Local Asso	ociation/Employer <u>Tuho</u>	ma	· ·

WASHINGTON EDUCATION ASSOCIATION POLITICAL ACTION COMMITTEE (WEA-PAC) NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION FUND FOR CHILDREN & PUBLIC EDUCATION (NEA-FCPE)

The Washington Education Association Political Action Committee (WEA-PAC) and the National Education Association Fund for Children and Public Education (NEA-FCPE) collect voluntary contributions from Association members and use those contributions for political purposes including, but not limited to, making contributions to and expenditures on behalf of friends of public education who are candidates for state and local office, and in the case of the NEA-FCPE, for federal office. Contributions to the NEA-FCPE and WEA-PAC are voluntary; making a contribution is neither a condition of employment, nor membership in the Association, and members have the right to refuse to contribute without suffering any reprisal. No employer or labor organization may discriminate against an officer or employee in the terms and conditions of employment for (i) the failure to contribute to, (ii) the failure in any way to support or oppose, or (iii) in any way supporting or opposing a candidate, ballot proposition, political party or political committee.

A member may give more or less than the suggested amount of \$12 per year to the NEA-FCPE, or may contribute nothing at all, without it affecting his or her membership status, rights, or benefits in the NEA or WEA. Only U.S. citizens or lawful permanent residents may contribute to the NEA-FCPE or WEA-PAC. Federal law prohibits the NEA-FCPE from receiving donations from persons other than members of the NEA and its affiliates and their immediate families. All donations from persons other than members of NEA and its affiliates and their immediate families will be returned forthwith. Federal law also requires us to use our best efforts to collect the name, mailing address, occupation, and the name of employer of individuals whose contributions to the NEA-FCPE aggregate in excess of \$200 in a calendar year. Contributions to WEA-PAC and/or the NEA-FCPE are not deductible as charitable contributions for income tax purposes.

No employer or other person may withhold a portion of a Washington state resident's earnings (or that of a nonresident whose primary place of work is in Washington) in order to make contributions to a political committee that must report to the Public Disclosure Commission or to a candidate for state or local office without written permission from that individual. Completion of this form entitles the entity specified to make such a withholding. This authorization for withholdings and contributions remains in effect until revoked in writing by the employee and received by WEA-PAC at P.O. Box 9100, Federal Way, WA 98063-9100.

Please discontinue any/all Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) authorizations on file from my credit card and/or bank account.

AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION

In order to contribute to WEA-PAC and NEA-FCPE please check the appropriate boxes below:

- WEA-PAC: I, the undersigned, acknowledge that I am a member of the above-named education association (where the entity representing my bargaining unit is a WEA/NEA affiliate), the Washington Education Association and the National Education Association. With full knowledge of the information above, I hereby authorize my employer to deduct \$2.25 per month from my salary in order to make contributions to WEA-PAC. Multiple authorizations will result in only ONE deduction of \$2.25. I agree that this authorization shall be automatically renewed each year thereafter unless written notice of revocation is given by me to WEA. Only certificated or classified personnel employed by Washington School Districts may elect to make contributions by payroll deduction.
- □ NEA-FCPE: With full knowledge of the information above, I authorize you as my employer to deduct from my salary, in accordance with agreed-upon payroll procedure, the suggested NEA-FCPE contribution of \$12 (\$1 per month) for the current NEA membership year and each membership year thereafter. I understand that I am free to contribute more or less than this suggested amount (or nothing at all), but can only do so via a method other than payroll deduction. I agree that this authorization shall be automatically renewed each year thereafter unless written notice of revocation is given by me to WEA. Only certificated or classified personnel employed by Washington School Districts may elect to make contributions by payroll deduction.

lember s Signatu	ıre	Date	Building Representative (optional)	•
HAM T	1 Mman	8/15/2016		

Book Board Policies and Procedures

Section 4000 Community Relations

Title Election Activities

Number 4400 Status Active

Legal Management Resources: Policy News, August 2001 ,PDC Issues Election Guidelines for Schools

WAC 390-05-273 Definition of normal and regular conduct WAC 390-05-271 General application of RCW 42.17.130

RCW 42.17.130 Forbids use of public office or agency facilities in campaigns

 $\underline{RCW\ 28A.320.090\ Preparing\ and\ distributing\ information\ on\ the\ district's}$

Cross References: Board Policy 5252 Staff Participation in Political Activities

Cross References: Board Policy 2022 Electronic Information System (K-20 Network)

Last Revised August 27, 2013

The district, as part of its mission to educate and instill civic virtue, will assure that public facilities are not be used to assist in any candidate's campaign or to support or oppose any ballot measure, and will assure that the community is appropriately informed about district and education related ballot measures through objective and fair presentations of the facts related to those measures.

The board will consider adopting resolutions expressing the board's collective opinion on ballot measures (state and local, including district levy and bond measures) that impact the effective operation of the schools. Such a resolution will be considered at a board meeting, the short title and proposition number of the ballot measure will be included in the meeting notice, and an equal opportunity will be provided for views on both sides of the issue to be expressed.

Prior to an election on a district ballot measure, the district will publish to the entire community an objective and fair presentation of the facts relevant to the ballot measure. Normal and regular publications of the district will also continue to be published during election cycles and may contain fair, objective and relevant discussions of the facts of pending election issues.

The superintendent or designee is directed to develop procedures for implementing this policy and communicating the policy and procedures to staff.

Revised: 082713 Revised: 120506 Book Board Policies and Procedures

Section 5000 Personnel

Title Staff Participation in Political Activities

Number 5252 Status Active

Legal RCW 41.06.250 Political Activities

RCW 42.17A.635 Legislative activities of state agencies, other units of government, elective

officials, employees

RCW 42.17A.555 Use of public office or agency facilities in campaigns - Prohibition - Exceptions

Cross Reference: Policy 4400 Election Activities
Management Resource: Policy News, October 2015

Adopted May 25, 1983

Last Revised December 1, 2015

The board of directors recognizes the right of its employees, as citizens, to engage in political activities. A staff member may seek an elective office provided that the staff member does not campaign on district property during working hours. District property and work time, supported by public funds, may not be used for political purposes.

In the event the staff member is elected to office, the employee may request a leave of absence in accordance with the leave policies of the district or the provisions of any applicable collective bargaining agreement. District employees who hold elective or appointive public office in an organization are not entitled to time off from their district duties for reasons incident to such offices unless the circumstances surrounding the leave request qualify under leave policies of the district.

Revised: 120115 Revised: 082713 Revised: 022812 Revised: 121989 Adopted: 052583

CORRECTIONS

SCHEDULE TO C4

10

Candidate or Committee Name (Do not abbreviate. Use full name.)

Date

Washingtion Education Association Political Action Committee (Washingtion09/01/15 10/12/15

2. EXPENDITURES (Include mathematical corrections.)

Date of Report	Vendor's Name or Description of Correction	Amount Reported	Corrected Amount	Difference (+ or -)
09/04/15	CHRISTINA M MASSIMINO 4202 CHILBERG AVE SW SEATTLE, WA 98116-3531	9.00	0.00	-9.00
09/04/15	CASSIE M WIEGAND 13733 GREENWOOD AVE N SEATTLE, WA 98133-6807	4.50	0.00	-4.50
09/04/15	LINDSAY S REMBERT 8218 35TH AVE SW SEATTLE, WA 98126-3453	6.75	0.00	-6.75
09/23/15	AUBURN SCHOOL DISTRICT 915 4th STREET N.E. AUBURN, WA 98002-4452	909.00	0.00	-909.00
		-929.25		

285,574.01

610,963.09

610,963.09



CANDIDATES ONLY

(253)941-6700

Primary election

General election

Won

Treasurer's Daytime Telephone No.:

Lost

SUMMARY, FULL REPORT RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES

C4(3/97)

PDC OFFICE USE 100350722 AMENDS 100329184 03-29-2010

Candidate or Committee Name (Do not abbreviate. Include full name)

2. Cash received (From line 2, Schedule A)	Washingt	tion Education .	Association PAC (W	Tashingtio	n Educat	ion Association PA	AC)		
Zip + 4 Office Sought (Candidates) Election Date 2009						7			
Report Period Covered From (last C-4) To (end of period) To (20 of 20 of	Zip + 4		,			*For PACs, Parties & Cauci			
RECEIPTS See next page Yes No X			4) To (end of period) Final		al Report?				
1. Previous total cash and in kind contributions (From line 8, last C-4) (if beginning a new campaign or calendar year, see instruction booklet) 2. Cash received (From line 2, Schedule A)		•	•		•				
(if beginning a new campaign or calendar year, see instruction booklet) \$ 799, 897 2. Cash received (From line 2, Schedule A) \$ 61,818.63 3. In kind contributions received (From line 1, Schedule B) \$ 34,868.94 4. Total cash and in kind contributions received this period (Line 2 plus 3) \$ 96,687 5. Loan principal repayments made (From line 2, Schedule L) \$ 0.00 6. Corrections (From line 1 or 3, Schedule C) \$ Show + or (-) \$ -48.36 7. Net adjustments this period (Combine line 5 & 6) \$ 80.00 8. Total cash and in kind contributions during campaign (Combine lines 1, 4 & 7) \$ 896,537 9. Total pledge payments due (From line 2, Schedule B) \$ 0.00 EXPENDITURES 10. Previous total cash and in kind expenditures (From line 17, last C-4) (If beginning a new campaign or calendar year, see instruction booklet) \$ 227,783 11. Total cash expenditures (From line 4, Schedule A) \$ 23,450.71 12. In kind expenditures (goods & services) (From line 1, Schedule B) \$ 34,868.94 13. Total cash and in kind expenditures made this period (Line 11 plus line 12) \$ 58,319	RECEIPTS	3				*See next page	Ye	s No	
3. In kind contributions received (From line 1, Schedule B)	1. Prev (if be	rious total cash and in kin eginning a new campaign	d contributions (From line 8, la or calendar year, see instructi	ast C-4) ion booklet)			· <u>\$</u>	799,897.89	
4. Total cash and in kind contributions received this period (Line 2 plus 3)	2. Cash	n received (From line 2, S	Schedule A)			···· \$ 61,818.63	_		
5. Loan principal repayments made (From line 2, Schedule L)	In kind contributions received (From line 1, Schedule B)					34,868.94	_		
6. Corrections (From line 1 or 3, Schedule C)	4. Tota	l cash and in kind contrib	outions received this period (Lir	ne 2 plus 3)				96,687.57	
7. Net adjustments this period (Combine line 5 & 6)	5. Loan principal repayments made (From line 2, Schedule L)				0.00	_			
8. Total cash and in kind contributions during campaign (Combine lines 1, 4 & 7)	6. Corrections (From line 1 or 3, Schedule C)Show + or (-				-48.36	_			
9. Total pledge payments due (From line 2, Schedule B)	7. Net	adjustments this period (0	Combine line 5 & 6)			Show + or (-)		-48.36	
EXPENDITURES 10. Previous total cash and in kind expenditures (From line 17, last C-4) (If beginning a new campaign or calendar year, see instruction booklet) 11. Total cash expenditures (From line 4, Schedule A) 12. In kind expenditures (goods & services) (From line 1, Schedule B) 13. Total cash and in kind expenditures made this period (Line 11 plus line 12) 14. Loan principal repayments made (From line 2, Schedule I.)	8. Tota	I cash and in kind contrib	outions during campaign (Comb	oine lines 1, 4 &	7)			896,537.10	
10. Previous total cash and in kind expenditures (From line 17, last C-4) (If beginning a new campaign or calendar year, see instruction booklet) 11. Total cash expenditures (From line 4, Schedule A) 12. In kind expenditures (goods & services) (From line 1, Schedule B) 13. Total cash and in kind expenditures made this period (Line 11 plus line 12) 14. Loan principal repayments made (From line 2, Schedule L)	9. Tota	ıl pledge payments due (F	From line 2, Schedule B)		0.00				
(If beginning a new campaign or calendar year, see instruction booklet)	EXPENDIT	TURES							
11. Total cash expenditures (From line 4, Schedule A)	10. Prev	vious total cash and in kin	d expenditures (From line 17,	last C-4)					
12. In kind expenditures (goods & services) (From line 1, Schedule B)	(It be	eginning a new campaign	ı or calendar year, see instruct	ion booklet)			·	227,783.61	
13. Total cash and in kind expenditures made this period (Line 11 plus line 12)	11. Tota	l cash expenditures (Fron	m line 4, Schedule A)			<u>23,450.7</u>	1.		
14 Loan principal repayments made (From line 2. Schedule I.)	12. ln kii	nd expenditures (goods &	& services) (From line 1, Sched	dule B)		34 <u>,</u> 868.9.	<u>4</u>		
14. Loan principal repayments made (From line 2, Schedule L)	13. Tota	l cash and in kind expend	ditures made this period (Line	11 plus line 12).				58,319.65	
	14. Loar	n principal repayments ma	ade (From line 2, Schedule L).				<u>0</u>		

CERTIFICATION: I certify that the information herein and on accompanying schedules and attachments is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Candidate's Signature Date Treasurer's Signature Date

Washingtion Education 10/13/09 John Okamoto

[Line 18 should equal your bank account balance(s) plus your petty cash balance.]

19. Liabilities: (Sum of loans and debts owed)

20. Balance (Surplus or deficit) (Line 18 minus line 19)

17. Total cash and in kind expenditures during campaign (Combine lines 10, 13 and 16).....

Name not

on ballot

Unopposed

CASH SUMMARY





NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT September 1, 2014 – August 31, 2018 between the TAHOMA SCHOOL DISTRICT and the TAHOMA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

NOTES

CONTENTS

Preamble	6
Witnesseth	6
Article I – Decision-Making Process	
A. Overview and Model	7
B. Decision Making Beliefs, Components, Assistance & Building Level Decisions	7
C. District Teaching and Learning Decisions	8
D. Site Plans	10
E. Teacher Leadership	10
F. District Budget Preparation	10
Article II – Contract Terms	
A. State Allocation Model (SAM)	11
B. Standard Employment Contract	11
C. Supplemental Employment Contracts	12
D. Workday, Planning, Coverage & Closures	15
E. Additional Assignments and Responsibilities	16
F. Insurance	18
G. Additional Benefits	19
H. Pay Periods, Payroll Deductions, Withholding & Annuities	20
I. Travel	20
Article III – Leaves	
A. Paid Leaves	21
B. Unpaid Leaves	
C. Sick Leave Buy-Back & Leave Sharing	
Article IV – Employee Rights	
Article IV – Employee Rights A. Just Cause	26
B. Personnel Files	
C. Assignment and Transfer	

CONTENTS (continued)

Artic	le V – Working Conditions	
	A. General Education Class Size and Special Education Workload	31
	B. Student Discipline	33
	C. Controversial Issues	33
	D. Safety/Environment	34
	E. Faculty Facilities	34
	F. Liability, Assault or Injury	34
	G. Non-Discrimination	34
Artic	le VI – Evaluation	
	A. Purpose of Evaluation	35
	B. Provisions Applicable to All Employees	
	C. Provisions Applicable Only to Certificated Classroom Teachers	
	D. Provisions Applicable to Classroom Teachers on the Comprehensive Evaluation	
	E. Provisions Applicable to Classroom Teachers on the Focused Evaluation Model	
	F. Provisions Applicable Only to Non-Classroom Staff on a Basic Evaluation Plan	
	G. Provisions Applicable Only to Non-Classroom Staff on a Professional Development Plan	
	H. Non-Probationary Plans of Assistance	
	I. Probation	44
Artic	le VII – Reduction in Force	
	A. General Provisions	46
	B. Definitions	46
	C. Seniority	46
	D. Selection for Layoff	
	E. Provisions for Re-Employment	
	F. Provisions for Reduction of Employees (ROE) Leave	
Artic	le VIII – Grievance Procedure	
	A. Definitions	50
	B. Rights to Representation	
	C. Individual Rights	
	D. Procedure	
	E. Miscellaneous Provisions	

Article IX – Terms of the Agreement

A. Recognition	54
B. Gender	54
C. Status of the Agreement	54
D. Entire Agreement	54
E. Conformity to Law	54
F. Variance Requests	55
G. Printing/Distribution	55
H. Association/District Rights and Responsibilities	55
I. No Strike/No Lock-Out	56
J. Rights of the Board	
K. Subcontracting	56
L. Duration and Commitment	

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is entered into between the Tahoma School District Board of Directors, hereinafter referred to as the "District" or "Board," and the Tahoma Education Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association."

WITNESSETH

The Board and the Association recognize their mutual aim is to continue to maintain effective employer/employee relationships and to bargain pursuant to RCW 41.59. To that effect the parties have set forth the following agreements and understandings.

TAHOMA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION	TAHOMA SCHOOL DISTRICT	
By: \$20.500e.	By: Mark Kock	
John Schuster TEA President	Mark Koch Director of Human Resources	
0/18/14	6-18-14	

Article I Decision-Making Process

A. Overview and Model

1. <u>Overview.</u> The Tahoma Education Association, Tahoma School District administration, and Tahoma School District Board of Directors (hereafter "we") believe in a collaborative approach for creating an environment where all students experience success.

Critical to this success is implementation of aligned curriculum, instruction, and assessment practices for grades K through 12. To support consistent standards throughout the system, we are committed to developing a common curriculum based on District and state standards that includes implementation of best practices as identified in the CEL 5D+ instructional model. The building staff, with system support, has the responsibility to implement the curriculum using best instructional practices.

2. <u>Model.</u> The parties are committed to a collaborative process for decision making based on a consensus model.

In consensus, consideration is given to all persons who are impacted by the decision. In this process everyone in the group supports, agrees to, or can live with a particular decision.

Each site is required to develop a decision making matrix based on consensus including identifying:

- how decisions are made
- by whom
- when decisions are made
- a most, the percentage used in reaching a final decision when complete agreement cannot be reached

B. Decision Making Beliefs, Components, Assistance, and Building Level Decisions

- 1. Beliefs about consensus Consensus works best when:
 - a. The parameters within which a decision will be made are identified;
 - b. Those staff members identified as providing input and making decisions are actively engaged;
 - c. Diversity is honored, encouraged, practiced and modeled;
 - d. All required participants prioritize the time necessary to reach consensus;
 - e. All required participants accept responsibility for the process including supporting, agreeing to or living with the group's decision;
 - f. Clearly articulated norms for group processing and structures for communicating decisions are established and implemented
- 2. Components of a building and District decision-making model shall include
 - a. A matrix identifying the process for final decisions and role of staff in building level decisions. Buildings shall use the format and required topics identified in Addendum 14 and have the autonomy, within the scope of the building's contractual and legal authority, to add topics through a consensus process;

- b. An annual review of the decision making process and matrix by the whole staff including identification of potential changes to any decisions that do and do not require consensus by the staff;
- c. An annual submission of the building matrices to the Association and Human Resources no later than October 1:
- d. Identification of most, the percentage used in reaching a final decision when complete agreement cannot be reached;
- e. A written description of the responsibility representatives have for seeking input and communicating concerns and alternatives prior to a consensus decision.
- f. A process for involving and informing staff of decisions reached on matrix topics;
- Consensus Training. Staff, with their principal, shall annually determine the training, coaching or other support necessary to successfully use a consensus based decision-making model. Requests for support will be submitted to the Director of Human Resources who will be responsible for development of a plan to meet the identified needs.

C. District Teaching and Learning Decisions

1. Belief.

Teachers are the key to successful student learning in a system committed to all students being Future Ready (the name of the District's current vision for learning). System level data used to monitor student success includes state and district assessments, the Washington State Achievement Index and graduate follow-up. We recognize the demand is high for teachers and because of this, the District is committed to high support to meet the needs of a high demand curriculum. We recognize that certain conditions advance successful learning. They include:

- a. Time and opportunity for students to learn
- b. Minimizing disruptions to deliver quality classroom instruction
- c. Small, manageable class sizes
- d. Time for teacher and staff planning and collaboration
- e. Sufficient resources; instructional, technology, staff, and leadership
- f. Community and parent support and involvement
- g. On-going professional development
- h. Teacher voice
- 2. <u>Vision.</u> We recognize the need for a collaborative process between the Teaching and Learning Department and individual buildings to balance high support and high demand. This collaboration is focused on:
 - capitalizing on (taking advantage of) staff commitment and passion around shared aspirations;
 - ensuring that demands placed on individual teachers and teams of teachers are reasonable; and
 - providing support that results in increased growth and achievement for all students.

The District and Association recognize and value the importance of teacher voice in developing courses and programs, designing curriculum, selecting resources, and planning for training to support student learning aligned to the Future Ready vision. The Teaching and Learning Department will work collaboratively with content areas, grade levels, and cross grade level teams to create curriculum maps, unit overviews,

pacing guides, frameworks, lessons, and common assessments that integrate Tahoma Student Outcomes, Habits of Mind and Thinking Skills.

3. Curriculum Implementation

The District and Association agree that:

- The district core curriculum must provide clear direction for teachers, consistent opportunities to learn for all students, and support the acquisition of 21st Century skills, as defined by our state standards and Tahoma Student Outcomes.
- Teachers personalize and adapt lessons and materials to meet the diverse needs of students and ensure growth and achievement of learning targets.
- Flexibility is embedded in classroom strategies that the teacher selects to ensure acquisition of key concepts and skills, Habits of Mind, and Tahoma Student Outcomes.
- Teachers use best instructional practices as defined by the Tahoma instructional model (CEL 5D+) as they make instructional strategy choices in a lesson or unit.

To effectively implement the Future Ready vision, the district will create structures and use strategies to ensure teacher voice in curriculum design, implementation, and evaluation. The following structures support this vision:

- A cross-building team or teams of teacher leaders, administrators, and Teaching & Learning coaches will provide input annually on the three year district planning process.
- The Association shall be informed of and given the option of adding a representative to all mutually identified committees impacting the instruction system. These committees shall be identified at monthly Labor Management meetings.
- Pacing guides and frameworks will reflect time allocations for differentiation, student assessment and building events.
- After initial implementation, curriculum revisions will be guided by feedback from teacher teams and student growth and achievement data.
- The District will use the curriculum documentation process in Addendum 13.
- The District and the Association shall review this Section C at least annually at a Labor Management meeting prior to the end of February to evaluate implementation of this Section.

4. Professional Development

As the District moves toward the full implementation of our instructional model (CEL 5D+), we recognize the importance of providing professional development that is timely, relevant, and supportive of teachers in using new practices in the classroom, including implementation of state and District standards (Future Ready Student Outcomes). The District is committed to teacher involvement in the planning process for in-service opportunities.

To effectively implement the Future Ready vision, the district will create structures and use strategies to ensure teacher voice in prioritizing professional development needs. The following structures support this vision:

 Teaching and Learning shall administer a survey prior to April 15 focused on supporting teachers in implementing best practices as defined by our instructional model as well as the content of our Future Ready curriculum. In addition, teachers in leadership roles shall seek input from the people they

- represent to help inform decisions that guide District directed professional development opportunities.
- Teaching and Learning will work collaboratively with building leadership teams
 to identify priorities for staff training and support informing the three year
 building site plan projections for professional development. This structure
 encourages alignment of initiatives and new options to emerge for differentiated
 training and support based on teacher need and site plan priorities.

D. Site Plans

The District and Association agree that holding ourselves accountable to student growth and achievement is a core responsibility of school staff. Annual updates to the school site plan by the building leadership team (administration and teacher leaders) provide a structure for data driven evaluation of impact of support structures and monitoring progress toward site plan goals.

Three year building site plans provide a structure and framework for the district, building administrators, and building team leaders to set both short (1 year) and longer term (3 year) growth and achievement targets and identify action plans that align to the Board's targets. The site plan provides a roadmap for work projected into the future as we balance competing initiatives and plan for the training and support needs of staff. Annual updates to the school site plan by the building leadership team will be provided to the Board with a structure for evaluating and reporting the impact of support structures and monitoring building progress toward site plan goals.

The Washington State Achievement Index will be used as one measure in monitoring growth and achievement.

E. Teacher Leadership

The District and Association are committed to a model of teacher leadership, designed to influence the building culture and support best instructional practices to achieve our Future Ready vision for all students. Leaders are expected to apply the knowledge, skills and tools learned to support teacher growth and increased student achievement. The focus of this work ensures alignment of support structures, professional learning, and resource allocation supported by research as necessary components of building leadership teams.

F. District Budget Preparation

The Association will be provided an opportunity for input and involvement during the early stages of the District budget preparation in a similar manner to the opportunities given building sites and departments. At the Association's request, training will be provided to a cadre of Association representatives in estimating District revenue, the uniform account coding system, how expenditures are determined in providing a balanced budget, and how expenditures are tracked during the school year.

Article II Contract Terms

A. State Allocation Model (SAM)

The Association and the District hereby adopt the State Allocation Model Salary Schedule and the rules implementing state funding to Districts on that schedule. All references to base pay shall be the first cell of the first column in the State Allocation Model (SAM).

This salary schedule shall reopen for negotiations at the request of the District or Association if the state legislature changes the model from the previous year in a manner other than to provide raises. This salary schedule shall similarly reopen for negotiations, at the request of the District, if the state fails to fully fund such schedule.

CTE Work Experience: If an employee is granted leave of absence from this District for the purpose of obtaining work experience in order to qualify for a CTE teaching certificate to be used in this District, one (1) year of experience advancement shall be granted on the salary schedule.

Credit for Private Sector Experience: Educational Staff Associates. The calculation of years of service for certificated occupational therapists, physical therapists, speech-language pathologists, nurses, counselors, and psychologists regulated under Title 18 RCW (salary placement calculation) may include experience in schools and other equivalent non-school positions consistent with regulations for placement on SAM. The calculation shall be that one year of service in a non-school position counts as one year of service for salary placement up to a limit of five (5) years of equivalent non-school service.

Credits and verified experience applicable for placement on the District salary schedule must be earned by October 1 of the current school year and documented by official transcripts. It will be the responsibility of the individual employee to furnish the District with such documentation on or before October 1.

Substitute Pay Rate will be reviewed annually and subject to mutual agreement through Labor Management meetings.

B. Standard Employment Contract

Staff members receive a basic contract for 180 days of work, which is performed during the scheduled workday and calendar year. If the district/principal requires employees to be present beyond the written contract, those who are required to attend shall be compensated on a true per diem rate, based on 180 days. All employees shall fulfill their contracted number of days during the regular school calendar, unless otherwise agreed to between the employee and his/her supervisor. The annual school calendar and any modifications made to the school calendar once approved shall be subject to negotiations.

The job requirements for fulfilling basic professional responsibilities are as follows:

- 1. Plan for and deliver or support quality instruction for students
 - Plan daily lessons and implement adopted District curriculum.
 - Administer assessments and use assessment information to modify lessons or teaching style to meet individual needs of students.
 - Maintain required reports including such items as grade books, attendance, and anecdotal record keeping in a timely fashion.
 - Adhere to the Washington Administrative Code, state and federal statutes, and District policies.

2. Participate in staff meetings. Within a building, staff and departmental/grade level meetings are necessary to provide and receive information that may include sharing in decisions related to site issues. Except for emergencies, staff meetings will not extend beyond the work day more than twice per month and will not exceed a total of forty-five (45) minutes per month outside the contract day. Sites will decide how best to use staff and departmental/grade meeting time to address issues identified by the staff or administration. Emergency meetings will be called whenever conditions require.

If a staff meeting is scheduled on a non-work day for a part-time employee and it is necessary for the part-time employee to attend, that staff member shall be compensated via services rendered form by prior arrangement and agreement with the employee's immediate supervisor.

- 3. Communicate with parents. Parent involvement is an essential element of student growth and positive community relationships. Staff members are expected to maintain contact with parents, return phone calls and email correspondence within two contract days allowing for exceptional circumstances, and be proactive when dealing with student concerns (such as discipline, low achievement, etc.) Staff members will participate in site decisions for parent communication. While the preferred time to meet with parents is during the ½ hour before or after school, meetings may, on occasion, have to be scheduled outside of the normal workday without additional compensation. Supervisors will support staff in efforts to keep parent meetings within the workday.
- 4. <u>Supervise students.</u> Staff members are an integral part of ensuring the safety and well-being of students while on campus, including assemblies and before/after school. Building crisis, site, and activity plans, as developed by the building staff, will include defining responsibilities for staff supervision. Staff members are expected to communicate concerns about students and report unsafe conditions and child abuse; or events such as fights, harassment, threats, or violations of the discipline policy to the appropriate people in a timely manner.
- 5. <u>Grow professionally.</u> Staff members are expected to stay current on educational issues, and participate in professional growth related to District, state and federal standards and initiatives.
- 6. <u>Professional Development Time.</u> To support the standard employment contract expectation to grow professionally, staff members will participate in individual and collegial activities such as self-reflection, goal setting, workshops, classes, conferences or other collaborative meetings to support student learning. In order to make effective use of the available student release time within the standard contract, including but not limited to early release days, the time will be allocated as follows:
 - 50 percent self-directed
 - 50 percent District-directed

The schedule of this time shall be determined through a building-level decision making process.

7. <u>Parent conferences.</u> Building staff will schedule and attend the annual District parent conferences. Building plans may include flexible scheduling to accommodate parent conferences beyond the work day.

C. Supplemental Employment Contracts

In addition to the Standard Employment Contract staff shall receive two supplementary contracts herein referred to as the Mandatory Supplemental Contract and the Responsibility Contract. Continuation of the Supplemental Employment Contracts described in this section are subject to conditions under Article IX, Section L. of this Agreement.

1. Mandatory Supplemental Contract

Mandatory Supplemental Contract hours shall be compensated at the same per diem hourly rate as the staff member's Standard Employment Contract. For the duration of this agreement, there shall be seven days (49 hours) allocated as follows:

Principal-directed	7
Self-directed	7
Building consensus determined	28
TPEP (evaluation) principal-directed	3.5
TPEP (evaluation) self-directed	3.5
TOTAL	49

The decision on how and when to use building determined Mandatory Supplemental Contract Days in support of the Site or Department Learning Plan will be made by the site or department through the building/department decision making model. Building staff will also determine to hold calendared, building sponsored events, which require the participation and presence of all or an identified group of staff. Examples could include – Open House, curriculum nights, student orientation or award events. This time may also be used for scheduled activities like training, seminars, or working together as collaborative teams in support of the site learning plan. The parties encourage sites to use the time in significant blocks, to the extent possible.

Staff new to the District will receive an additional mandatory supplemental contract for four (4) days for District employee and building orientation and training on curriculum.

Part time staff will receive full day pay for any mandatory supplemental contract days worked.

Staff unable to attend a mandatory day activity shall complete a leave slip for time missed. It is the staff member's responsibility to arrange for and acquire the information or training that was provided on the mandatory day. Curricula or policy decisions made while absent will be adhered to.

Use of mandatory time may not be used for zero hour programs or to pay for time at meetings during the duty free lunch period, which is a statutory right.

2. Responsibility Contract

We recognize that basic education funding does not compensate staff for the time necessary to complete all the required educational duties. There are responsibilities that are performed beyond the normal workday or calendar year for which additional compensation will be provided in the amount equal to 13.281 percent of the continuing staff member's standard salary. Staff with more than 16 years of experience (measured using state rules for the SAM) shall be paid the following additional amounts:

		2015-16
	2014-15	and beyond
17-20 years	\$375	\$750
21-25 years	\$750	\$1,500
26-30 years	\$1,125	\$2,250
31+ years	\$1,500	\$3,000

Staff in their first provisional year of employment with the District will receive a responsibility contract for 11.631 percent (plus an additional four (4) paid work days

under Article II, Section C.1 above, to be used for District and building orientation and training on curriculum). Staff members new to the District are not expected to assume the same level of involvement in "Responsibility Contract" during their first year of employment as they focus on learning the District curriculum. A staff member who is hired as a leave replacement, during their first year, will receive the same contract as a first year provisional. A staff member hired after October 1 will have their 11.631 percent responsibility contract prorated on the basis of the balance of the year remaining. Staff returning to the District following a separation of service will receive either a new hire contract or a returning contract at the discretion of the District.

Part-time employees will receive a responsibility contract equal to the portion of their FTE. If the staff member is requested in advance to attend staff meetings or other meetings by their building principal or department supervisor on non-scheduled days they will be compensated via a services rendered form. The combination of responsibility contract and services rendered compensation will not exceed the equivalent compensation provided to a full-time staff member under the responsibility contract.

All staff members are expected to fulfill their "Responsibility Contract" by performing self-directed and scheduled work outside of the traditional workday.

All Staff will meet the following professional obligations:

Prepare workspace for instruction or support of instruction prior to the opening and at the conclusion of the school year.

Complete State and District mandatory student assessments including administering and scoring as necessary.

Prepare summative progress and grade reports for distribution as scheduled by the building and appropriate to their assignment.

Participate in scheduled staff or building meetings including SST, 504, and IEP meetings which may extend beyond the regular contract work day.

Staff will self-determine their level of involvement for the following obligations:

Participate in self-reflection, goal setting, and related professional growth activities, such as: attending workshops, classes, conferences, seminars or participating in action research projects.

Participate in the development of a building site plan, other building activities or committees such as interview teams.

Develop and maintain a classroom or grade level/department website with the availability of District training and technology.

Individual staff members will work with or in support of one (1) or more colleague(s). The work will be related to curriculum, assessment, site plan activities, consensus decision-making or goals related to the individual's professional growth.

Each staff person is responsible for maintaining a record of work and to retain the record for protection should the state auditor choose to audit the time. The individual staff member will submit verification form of having fulfilled the responsibility contract by June 30th of each year.

3. Compensation Adjustment to the Responsibility Contract

The Responsibility Contract shall be adjusted each year of this agreement to the average compensation in the comparison districts identified below. The District and the Association shall determine the average compensation of the seven comparison school districts (i.e. Standard Contract and TRI compensation received by all certificated

employees through state funding and Programs and Operations levy collections in accordance with their respective negotiated agreements) as of November 30 each school year. The comparison school districts shall include Auburn, Enumclaw, Issaquah, Kent, Renton, Riverview, and Snoqualmie Valley. The increased compensation shall be disbursed in January. If the average compensation calculated in this paragraph is less than the amount originally calculated the mandatory time and responsibility contracts shall not be adjusted.

D. Workday, Planning, Coverage and Closures

- 1. A certified employee's total workday shall specifically include the thirty (30)-required minutes before and after school and the thirty (30) minutes minimum duty-free lunch.
- 2. Computed on a weekly basis, employees will average 310 minutes of instructional time per day, and at least forty-five (45) continuous minutes of preparation time each day, except for teachers for grades K-5. Teachers at grades K-5 will be provided an average of thirty (30) continuous minutes of preparation time during the student day. Where buildings have reached a decision using the consensus-based decision making model, a variance shall not be required.
- 3. Employees who are required in the course of their employment to travel between buildings shall be scheduled to provide sufficient time for such travel.
- 4. Teachers of music, art, physical education, and laboratory sciences, librarians, speech therapists, reading consultants, social workers, OT/PT's, counselors, and all special education teachers shall be provided with relief and preparation time to the same extent as other teachers in the District.
- 5. If mutually agreed by the District and the Association, an employee shall be paid for teaching an extra period during their planning period. Employees shall be remunerated at their per diem rate of pay per teaching period for the extra period worked. Prior to posting these positions, the District shall inform the Association President of the positions. Within five (5) days of written notification of the President of such positions, Association representatives shall meet with District representatives to discuss the positions. The Association shall notify the District of their decision within five (5) days of the meeting noted above. Posting of the positions shall require Association approval.
- 6. Staff members shall not be assigned to more than fifteen (15) minutes per day, nor more than one (1) hour and fifteen (15) minutes total per week, of supervision of students outside of instructional time.
- 7. In cases of emergency, which is defined as a time when substitutes are not reasonably available to cover classes, the building staff will determine through the building decision making model how supervision and instruction of students will take place. Effort will be made to assign substitute coverage on an equitable basis, provided that employees who request such assignments will be given first priority. Employees who lose planning time will be reimbursed at their per diem hourly rate of pay. A building may, as one solution for emergency coverage, include the option for staff to assume a portion of someone else's class for a day. If this occurs, the staff person(s) assuming the responsibility will receive a prorated share of regular substitute compensation for the portion of the class and day they have covered.
- 8. When a staff member has entered a "Duty Out of Classroom" request at least one week prior to the date of the meeting and is called back to the classroom due to a shortage of substitutes, the principal may approve 60 minutes of services rendered time in recognition of the inconvenience.

- 9. If employees show up for work on a school day canceled for inclement weather and the District has not publicly announced closure by 6:30 a.m., employee(s) will be paid for one (1) hour.
- 10. The overall model of the daily schedule will be set by the Board. Schools may adjust at the building level within that model taking into consideration the needs of shared staff.
- 11. The calendar for the following school year shall be negotiated prior to March 30 of the current school year.

E. Additional Assignments and Responsibilities

1. Miscellaneous Activity Money

- a. Buildings will use the funds for the purpose of compensating staff for accepting additional responsibilities for student centered extended learning opportunities or "zero hour" programs and assignments developed through the site consensus process. There will be \$29 per FTE student at the elementary level (K-6) and \$15 per FTE student at the secondary level available for this purpose. Any elementary funds not used in the year they are allocated will be carried forward to the following year by adding it to the District wide amount available for this purpose. For those assignments or responsibilities that will be compensated, the compensation will be determined by the building as a stipend or per diem pay (a building may pay for zero hour activities at a rate of pay equal to the District average hourly rate of pay). Building based stipends will be identified, listed and available for review by the building staff for future planning.
- b. Certificated staff teaching kindergarten through sixth grade students will receive support for materials and supplies reimbursement, substitute release time, and paying for workshop registrations and books (conference materials). The amount available to each staff person will be their share of \$19 per District K-6 FTE students divided by the total District K-6 FTE certificated elementary staff. Part time staff will receive a prorated share.

2. Leadership Money

- a. There will be \$28 per FTE student available each year, for compensating for leadership responsibilities.
- b. There will be a flexible system for compensation of building leadership needs and activities. The building's consensus model will be used to determine these roles, the duration of the responsibility and compensation. The process for identifying leadership roles is to:
 - Identify building leadership needs
 - Review how leadership needs have been met in the past
 - Problem solve ways of meeting leadership needs
 - · Decide how the building leadership needs are to be met
- Supplemental Contracts and Additional Assignments. Supplemental contracts for each position will be funded by the District as follows. The employee and supervisor will mutually schedule such days.
 - a. <u>Traffic Safety</u>. Traffic safety instructors will be compensated at per diem rate for in-class instruction. Behind the wheel instruction will be compensated at the rate of 2.75% of step one of SAM divided by 36 weeks times the number of hours worked.

- b. <u>Career & Technical Education Extended Days.</u> There will be 172 extended days available to CTE staff. The distribution of these days will be determined collaboratively between the building administration and the department.
- c. <u>Kindergarten Assessment Days.</u> There shall be 2 days prior to the start of the school year for kindergarten teachers teaching two half-day sessions. There shall be one day for teachers who teach all-day kindergarten or a single half-day session.
- d. <u>Special Education and IEP Compensation.</u> Special education, SLP, OT/PT, psychologist staff shall receive .0278 of the individual's standard contract in recognition of the amount of additional time required for writing IEPs and assessments, participating in IEP meetings and/or evaluation meetings. The Director of Special Education may approve additional hours of time, paid at per diem.
- e. <u>District Sponsored In-Service Training.</u> One (1) or two (2) in-service instructors who plan and instruct a District staff development class outside of contractual work day/responsibilities, will each be paid at the rate of seventy-five (\$75.00) per hour based on teaching/facilitating time. Teams of more than two (2) must be pre-approved by the Teaching and Learning Department and will be compensated at the rate of 2 ½ times the hourly training rate (\$188 hourly to be divided among the group of instructors).
- f. Mentor Teacher. Tahoma School District is committed to supporting and nurturing new staff members, both professionally and personally. A key component of this assistance is the pairing of new teachers with peer mentors. Mentors are experienced staff members trained to observe, coach and support educators in their first years of teaching. A trusting and effective mentor/mentee relationship is based on mentors as peers. Mentors are not supervisors and mentor observations are not to be used as part of the staff member's evaluation.

Potential mentors should be experienced staff members who are distinguished or proficient in their own evaluations.

Interview teams are encouraged to review the "mentor selection criteria" and identify potential mentors for qualified new hires. Site or program administrators should contact potential mentors, select from those interested, and complete the Mentor Selection Form.

Should problems or concerns arise between the mentor and mentee, either party may seek problem solving support from the site administrator, Teaching & Learning New Teacher Coordinator, and/or an Association representative.

Mentor teachers will receive an annual stipend of \$600 and 10 hours of per diem for observations, coaching and meeting time. Mentees will receive an annual stipend of \$200.

- 4. <u>Per Diem Rate.</u> Per diem rate is paid for additional assignments and responsibilities unless otherwise noted in the contract.
- 5. <u>District Leadership Needs.</u> There are District needs which are met by building level staff. Unless otherwise noted, the per diem stipends will be prorated to the individual's FTE. The selection process for staff members qualified to receive stipends in this section for District leadership responsibilities shall not be subject to the procedures outlined in Article IV Section C. An annual posting of supplemental leadership stipends in this section is specifically not required, however staff members who request to be considered for such stipends for a subsequent year shall be given such consideration. The responsibilities and compensation in this section, which no qualified Association

member accepts, may be offered to qualified individuals outside the bargaining unit. References to base salary shall be the first cell of the first column on the State Salary Allocation Model. See Addendum 3.

6. Supplemental Contract Review and Adjustments

Staff receiving supplemental contracts and additional assignments who document over a period of two years that the days provided to carry out these duties are insufficient, may submit the documentation to the District and Association for consideration.

The District may offer the work of extra days above the contracted supplemental day amounts to non-bargaining unit employees only after posting the extra supplemental contract days in the District. After posting for five days, the District may proceed if no qualified District employee applies for the said extra days.

Any changes to supplemental contracts listed in 3 and 5 above shall be negotiated between the District and Association prior to the next school year through the labor management process.

The specific schedule for the time in the supplemental contract is to be arranged for by the building principal following consultation with the individual involved. The principal, after consultation with and approval of the Superintendent, may request through the Board additional days to a maximum of two (2) days in each position.

Supplemental contracts funded by federal and state monies are to be unaffected by local financial problems as long as the actual position remains intact. The supplemental contract for any federal or state-funded position that is less than full time will receive a reduced supplemental contract that is in direct ratio to the part-time position.

F. Insurance

The District shall contribute to an employee's insurance payment with these provisions:

- 1. The District shall compute its share of the insurance payment for each certificated staff member on the total insurance package held by that staff member as defined in 2 and 3 below.
- 2. The insurance payment shall be applicable to any one or combination of the following:
 - Group Health
 - Association sponsored insurance plans
 - WEA Dental Plan, including Orthodontia
 - Life insurance, \$50,000
 - Long-term Disability
 - Group Vision
- 3. The District shall contribute the state-funded amount per month per FTE for payment of dental, long-term disability, vision and life insurance. To the extent funds are available; the District shall cover medical insurance and shall allow for optional deductions for the un-funded amount of medical insurance. If additional amounts are allowed, but not funded, the Association reserves the right to re-open negotiations on this section.
- 4. The District and the Association recognize that the monthly insurance provision may not be fully utilized due to some employees selecting less coverage than the agreed individual employee allocation after deduction for mandatory benefits. The District will identify the unutilized portion and distribute such amount, if any, to employees whose basic benefit coverage exceeds the District contribution. Basic benefits are defined as dental, group term life, group long-term disability, vision, and health insurance. The

District shall compute the pool to be distributed in October and April of each year to ensure utilization within twenty dollars (\$20.00) of the maximum amount.

In the event the distribution described above exceeds the funded amount provided by the state, the amount distributed will be adjusted downward in the employee's remaining pay warrant(s) for the school year in question. Prior to implementing this adjustment the District will inform the Association of the appropriate amount.

Employee-initiated changes may occur once a year during the open enrollment period set by the insurance carrier. An insurance adjustment may also be requested for a qualifying event as determined by the insurance carrier.

Application of available benefit monies:

- a. The benefit monies must first be applied toward the following required programs:
 - WEA Dental Plan, including Orthodontia
 - \$50,000 Group Term Life Plan
 - Group long-term Disability
 - Vision
- b. Benefit monies in excess of the above amounts may then be applied to the following health plans:
 - WEA Blue Cross Plans
 - Group Health Cooperative
- c. All optional benefits are at employee deduction. Parties will periodically review and adjust plans.
- 5. Spouses who are both employed within the Association bargaining unit, or within the Association and another Tahoma School District bargaining unit who agrees to this provision, may pool their individual allocations for the purchase of a single medical health plan (e.g. employee plus spouse or employee plus spouse and children) rather than separate plans.
- 6. To ensure employees selecting richer benefit plans pay the higher premium, and make progress toward the 3:1 ratio goal of full-family to employee-only coverage premiums in ESSB 5940, each employee included in the pooling arrangement within the CBA who elects medical benefit coverage shall pay a minimum out-of-pocket charge by monthly payroll deduction. The minimum monthly charge shall be 2% of the employee-only coverage premium for the plan chosen by the employee. Such minimum monthly charge shall be paid regardless of the impact of pooling.
- 7. The parties shall abide by state laws relating to school district employee benefits, and this section shall be construed consistent with such laws.
- 8. This section may be reopened at the request of either party each year in order to comply with changes in state law.

G. Additional Benefits

<u>Staff Wellness Program.</u> To promote healthy, active lifestyles, the District and Association will create a committee to meet annually in the spring to evaluate the staff wellness program offerings for the school year and determine changes, if any, needed for the program. The District will allocate up to \$20,000 per year.

H. Pay Periods, Payroll Deductions, Withholding and Annuities

- 1. Employees will be paid on the last weekday of the month that is not a District holiday.
- 2. Payroll Deductions
 - a. Automatic Deductions: All salaries are subject to payroll deductions for:
 - Withholding tax
 - State Teacher or State Employment Retirement Systems
 - FICA
 - Medicaid
 - Absence not provided for by leaves (computed at per diem based on the staff member's annual salary for each day's absence)
 - Representation Fee
 - State Industrial Insurance
 - Monies will also be deducted when requested by the state or IRS for liens, garnishments, or child support.
 - b. Authorized Deductions. The following deductions may be made if authorized by the individual:
 - Additional withholding tax
 - Approved medical plans
 - Short-Term Disability Salary Insurance
 - Tax-sheltered annuities
 - Tax-sheltered Section 125 "Flexible Spending Plan"
 - Payments to Washington School Employees' Credit Union or other financial institutions.
 - Other approved insurance programs
 - Association dues
 - United Way contribution
 - U.S. Savings Bond
 - Direct deposit of employee's paycheck to participating financial institutions
- 3. <u>Tax-Sheltered Annuity</u>. Once a calendar year employees may initiate and/or change their participation in tax-sheltered annuity programs. The District shall service these through automatic payroll deductions. Annuities may be canceled anytime during the calendar year and this will not be a designated change per IRS rules.

I. Travel

- 1. <u>In-District Travel.</u> Mileage reimbursement shall be equal to the amount paid per District policy.
- 2. <u>Out-of-District Travel.</u> The employee shall be reimbursed for those expenses incurred through travel, meals, and lodging per District policy for Board-approved out-of-District projects or visitations.

Article III

Leaves

A. Paid Leaves

1. Personal, Illness and Professional Leave

Each certificated employee shall be allocated twelve (12) days of annual leave. Staff members working less than full time will receive prorated leave based on their FTE. Any unused leave in any one (1) year shall be cumulative from year to year to a maximum number of days as defined in state law. No salary deduction shall be made for absences on account of personal illness, professional or personal reason. A maximum of seven (7) days may be used for professional or personal reasons each year.

Medical (including dental and vision) emergencies are considered personal illness. Whenever possible, routine medical, dental and vision checkups or life insurance examinations should be scheduled outside of the contracted work day.

When possible, the employee will provide their supervisor with notice when they will be taking non-illness leave.

Absence in excess of five (5) consecutive days for illness must be supported by a doctor's certificate. Absences of more than four (4) consecutive days for reasons other than illness will not be allowed. In special circumstances for the purpose of attending professional development opportunities which may otherwise not be supported by the District, the building principal and staff member may mutually agree on additional non-illness day(s) to be deducted from the staff member's illness leave.

In the case of a long-term medical leave, a doctor will be asked to complete a District form stating the probable beginning and ending dates for the leave. The completion of an additional form will be required to amend the leave dates.

Up to 20 District certificated staff members (10 at secondary and 10 at elementary) requiring a substitute may be granted non-illness leave. Prior approval will be granted on a first come first served basis following receipt of a request to the District's Human Resources Department. The Human Resources Department in emergency situations may approve exceptions to the limit.

Only leaves for illness, leaves for bereavement, approved duty out of classroom, Association leave, emergency, military, and judicial purposes will be allowed on the workday immediately preceding or following December, February, and April breaks, or the first or last day of school.

Non-illness days shall be taken in full- or half-day increments, excluding mandatory days which can be taken hourly, half-day, or full-day.

Exception to the above:

<u>Emergency Leave.</u> Up to three (3) days of non-illness leave may be used for emergencies. These are to be deducted from the total of seven (7) non-illness days allowed in any given school year. If all seven (7) days have been used, this emergency leave will be unpaid.

Other. Leaves requested but not covered by the above are to be appealed to a District Appeals Committee using the District leave request form. A District Appeals Committee will be formed composed of five (5) voting Association members and two (2) alternates that will serve if one of the five (5) permanent members is from the building where the request originated. This committee will be facilitated by the Human Resources Department. This leave will come out of the seven (7) non-illness days.

2. <u>Bereavement</u>. The District shall grant five (5) days bereavement leave with pay to employees according to the following provisions.

Up to five (5) days of bereavement leave per occurrence shall be granted for the death of an employee's parent, spouse, child, sibling, parent-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt, uncle, grandparent, grandchild, close friend, or any person living in the immediate household.

Additional days of bereavement leave may be deducted from accrued days of leave and must be approved by the Human Resources Department.

The Human Resources Department may also grant additional days of bereavement leave. If no paid leave is available, the cost of the substitute will be deducted.

3. Serious Family Illness Leave

Up to three (3) days paid leave may be used in a given year for diagnosed life threatening illness or hospital care of those individuals, not including close friend (unless living in the household), listed in 2 above.

Accumulated sick leave may be used by an employee for illness of any individual identified in 2 who requires treatment or supervision by the employee.

4. Child Birth/Adoption Leave

Maternity leave shall be provided for the period of disability that prevents an employee from fulfilling her contractual obligation to the District. Accrued illness benefits will be paid only for the period of disability.

In the case of a maternity-related disability, the doctor will be asked to complete a District form stating the probable beginning and ending dates for the leave. The completion of an additional form will be required to amend the leave dates.

The employee must submit a written request to her immediate supervisor for maternity leave. This request will include: approximate length of absence, the estimated date the absence is to begin, and the estimated date the absence is expected to end. This request should be signed by the immediate supervisor and forwarded to the Human Resources Department for approval.

An employee will be granted three (3) days of leave for the adoption of the employee's child or birth of a spouse or partner's child. The leave will be deducted from illness leave. This leave may be used in conjunction with other paid leaves available for this purpose.

In addition to the above paid leaves, unpaid leave may be allowed for the birth or adoption/foster of a child.

5. Jury Duty and Court Action

Employees may serve on juries.

When a staff member is subpoenaed to appear in court on behalf of the District, the District will pay that staff member's per diem pay for the time spent in court, up to a 7 hour work day, when such court appearance occurs on a non-contracted work day.

When subpoenaed by a court, a staff member shall receive leave without loss of pay for up to fifteen (15) days. Employees are allowed to keep any compensation they receive for serving as a member of a jury in addition to their regular pay.

The provisions above shall not apply and will be considered leave without pay when a staff member appears as the plaintiff, claimant, or defendant on the staff member's own behalf, or in any action or proceeding in which the District or its agents are a party unless said employee is subpoenaed by the District.

6. Association Leave

The Tahoma Education Association will be granted a cumulative total of thirty (30) days of absence each year for professional meetings and business of the National, State, and Local Education Associations. The Association will give five (5) days advance notice whenever possible to the District of pending absence. Whenever more than three (3) Association representatives are released on the same date, the additional representatives will count in the non-illness related leave cap (Section A1 above). The Association will reimburse the District at the substitute teacher pay rate for substitutes hired to cover such absences.

When the parties mutually agree to meet during the workday there will not be a charge to the Association for substitute costs.

B. Unpaid Leaves

1. <u>Leave of Absence.</u> A staff member may request a long-term unpaid leave. The Board upon recommendation of the Superintendent may grant the long-term leave of absence to the staff member. No more than 2% of the staff will be on long-term unpaid leaves at any one time. The following provisions apply:

A staff member must have completed one (1) year of satisfactory service in the District to be eligible for long term-leave. Requests for leave for conditions found in sections a, b, c, and d must be submitted by May 15 of the year preceding the requested leave. Leaves requested for the conditions found in sections e, f, g, h, and i below shall be evaluated by the Superintendent and will not count against the two percent (2%) cap.

The District shall reappoint a certificated staff member upon receipt of a written request submitted no later than March 15. Failure to give written notification to the District by March 15th constitutes a resignation of the position. For leaves of one-year duration, the District will reassign the staff member to their previously assigned building and shall make every effort to reassign the individual to a position commensurate with the individual's training and experience. For leaves of greater than one year's duration, the District shall make every effort to reassign the individual to a position commensurate with the individual's training and experience. Moreover, the growth and future need of the District will be taken into consideration when the leave is granted so that any untenable commitments by either party may be avoided. Further, the conditions affecting leaves under Section d, e, f, and g shall determine acceptance for reappointment as judged by the District.

Leaves of absence may be granted for:

- a. Study and research
- b. Foreign teaching in the service of the U.S.
- c. Approved exchange teacher assignment
- d. Work in a professionally-related field
- e. Personal illness
- f. Family emergency
- g. Maternity
- h. Military
- i. Special cases as recommended by the Superintendent or designee.
- 2. Family Medical Leave Act. The terms of the FMLA may be found in Board Policy 5404.

3. <u>Leave for Public Office.</u> The District shall provide unpaid leave of absence for certificated employees who have been elected to public office. The following shall regulate the leave:

Any certificated employee who has been elected to a public office has the right to hold that office and to attend to the duties associated with that office.

The duties and obligations inherent in the office held by the employee shall determine the length of the leave.

Certificated employees who have been elected to the state legislature shall be granted leaves greater than their legislative term contingent on the District's securing a qualified (as determined by the District) substitute.

C. Sick Leave Buy-Back and Leave Sharing

- 1. Sick Leave Buy-Back. The District will continue to provide sick leave buy-back in Board policy pursuant to state statute and WACs for the annual sick leave buy-back. The Board policy authorizing such annual sick leave buy-back will not change during the life of this Collective Bargaining Agreement. Upon an employee's retirement, death, or other separation from employment entitling him or her to receive cash remuneration for accrued sick leave pursuant to state statutes and WACs, the District, in lieu of cash remuneration, shall make an equivalent payment on the employee's behalf to the post employment health plan, which provides a benefit plan for reimbursement of medical expenses, pursuant to RCW 28A.400.210(3). To be eligible for this contribution, the employee shall execute a hold harmless agreement as required under RCW 28A.400.210(3). Except for eligibility to receive a contribution to the benefit plan, no employee shall be otherwise entitled to remuneration for accrued sick leave upon their retirement, death, or separation from District employment.
- 2. <u>Sick Leave Sharing.</u> Sick leave sharing may be provided by other employees on a case-by-case basis pursuant to state law for an eligible employee who suffers from, or has a relative or household member suffering from, an extraordinary or severe illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition which has caused, or is likely to cause, the employee to take leave without pay or to terminate employment.

The staff member must have depleted, or will shortly deplete his/her sick/personal/family illness leave reserves and is not eligible for industrial insurance benefits.

District employees may donate leave as follows:

- a. A staff member who has an accrued annual leave balance of more than ten (10) days may request that the District transfer a specified number of days to another staff member authorized to receive donated leave. A staff member may not request leave to be transferred that would result in an accrued annual leave balance of fewer than ten (10) days.
- b. A staff member who accrues annual leave and sick leave may request that the superintendent transfer sick leave to a staff member authorized to receive shared leave, or the District's annual leave pool. A donating staff member must retain a minimum of 176 hours of sick leave after the transfer.
- c. A staff member who does not accrue annual leave but who has an accrued sick leave balance of more than twenty-two (22) days may request that the superintendent transfer a specified amount of sick leave to another staff member authorized to receive such leave, or to the District's shared leave pool. A staff member may not request a transfer that would result in an accrued sick

- leave balance of fewer than twenty-two (22) days. Sick leave as defined in RCW 28A.400.300 means leaves for illness, injury and emergencies.
- d. A staff member who receives personal holiday leave may request that the superintendent transfer a specified amount of personal holiday leave to another staff member authorized to receive shared leave, or to the District's shared leave pool. A staff member may request to transfer no more than eight (8) hours of personal holiday leave during any calendar year.
- e. The number of leave days transferred shall not exceed the amount authorized by the donating staff member.
- f. Any leave donated by a staff member which remains unused shall be returned to the donor. To the extent administratively feasible, leave transferred by more than one staff member shall be returned on a pro-rata basis.
- g. Leave shall be calculated on a day-donated and day-received basis.

Article IV Employee Rights

A. Just Cause

No employee shall be disciplined with written reprimand or verbal warning without just cause.

The specific grounds forming the basis for disciplinary action to be added to an employee's personnel file will be sent to the staff member.

An employee shall be entitled to and be informed of the right to have present a representative of the Association during any disciplinary action excluding informal warnings, criticism, or suggestions for improvement which do not independently form a basis for formal action. When a request for such representation is made, no action shall be taken with respect to the employee until such representation of the Association is present or until two (2) days have passed after such request. In cases where the health, safety, and wellbeing of students, other employees, or District patrons necessitate immediate disciplinary action, the District will notify the Association as soon as reasonably possible that action has been taken.

Any written charge of misconduct made against an employee by any parent, student, or other person will be promptly called to the attention of the staff member.

When charges of misconduct are made against an employee by any parent, student, or other person which results in an investigation, the principal will give written notice of the allegations to the employee within twelve (12) working days of commencement of the investigation. Any investigation will include an opportunity for the employee to respond to all allegations lodged against him/her.

When investigating such charges, the investigation materials and results will be maintained in the District files, except in those instances when the employee is disciplined as a result of the investigation, then the letter of discipline will be placed in the personnel file. The employee will also be given written notice of the results of the investigation within twelve (12) working days of completion of the investigation.

B. Personnel Files

Employees' personnel files maintained in the Human Resources Department or working files in the immediate supervisor's office that may serve as a basis for affecting employment status will be available for inspection by the affected employee. Anyone, at the employee's request, may be present in this inspection.

An employee will have the right to comment on any material placed in the personnel or working file and to have such comments attached to the material in question.

Derogatory information will be entered into an employee's file under the following conditions only:

The employee will be notified, in writing, within ten (10) working days, that such information has been placed in the file.

The employee will be provided an opportunity to challenge the accuracy or appropriateness of such information.

The employee will be provided an opportunity to enter a written statement of clarification or explanation of such information.

After three (3) years, an employee may request that the District remove derogatory materials from that person's file provided that there has been no similar reoccurrence during those three (3) years. The District reserves the discretion to continue such placement in the personnel file, if deemed relevant. Materials removed will be destroyed as allowed by record retention statutes.

Upon request, the employee and/or the Superintendent or the official designee shall sign an inventory sheet to verify contents of the personnel file at the time of inspection.

The District will not release documents from an employee's personnel file unless required by law. Prior to the release of any document to someone not acting on behalf of the District, the District shall provide notice of at least five (5) working days to allow the employee to seek an injunction against such release.

C. Assignment and Transfer

1. General Conditions

Employees will be assigned on the basis of the needs of the District.

For the purpose of assignments and transfers building staff positions include classroom teachers, health and fitness and music specialists, counselors, social workers and deans of students. Program staff include special education teachers, SLPs/OTs/PTs/BIS and psychologists.

For the purpose of assignment and transfer a "reassignment" refers to a change in assignment within a building or program. A transfer refers to a change location for building staff or a change in program or from program to a building staff position.

An employee on a special assignment will be guaranteed a return to their same position for one year. If the employee on special assignment serves in that role for an additional year, the District will guarantee return to an equivalent position.

Excessed means an employee's position has been eliminated due to enrollment or program changes and without a transfer he/she would be subject to reduction in force (Article VII).

- 2. <u>Assignments and Voluntary Transfers.</u> Vacancies on the professional staff will be filled according to the following considerations:
 - a. **Step 1** In-Building or Program Reassignments.

Employees in-building or in-program will be first considered for reassignment to vacancies within the building or program by their principal or supervisor. Part-time employees, with the recommendation of the principal or supervisor and the approval of Human Resources may increase their FTE in their building or program. Candidates not selected will be told why they were not selected for an in-building or in-program reassignment, in writing, if requested.

- b. **Step 2** Vacancies remaining after completion of Step 1:
 - 1) Vacancies will be posted internally for five (5) days and externally until filled. The postings will be simultaneous. HR will retain and keep confidential all information concerning outside applicants until the internal consideration process is complete.
 - 2) Hiring Committees.
 - (a) Building and program hiring committees, established pursuant to building and District decision matrices will receive training on appropriate hiring and interview techniques and procedures.
 - (b) Building and program hiring committees will identify in the posting for the vacancy any specific skills, practices, or specific qualifications necessary to be successful in the building or program's culture.
 - (c) Building and program hiring committees will identify questions for internal qualified candidates that reflect the specific qualification

- and culture of the building (these questions as well as basic screening questions may be asked of external candidates).
- (d) If the hiring committee has a concern about an internal candidate, which will not be addressed through the questions or presentations developed to identify the ability of a candidate to meet the specific qualifications of the building or program the concern will be conveyed to the candidate. The manner of conveying the concerns to the candidate may include the principal or supervisor informing the candidate in advance of the interview or by raising the concern at the end of the interview. Only concerns that will be considered by the hiring committee in making a transfer decision will be conveyed to the candidate. The principal/supervisor may ask the hiring committee to reach a consensus and record the consensus on the concern, if so after the decision has been made and the position filled the record of the concern will be destroyed.
- Human Resources will review internal applications and determine those who meet the stated qualifications for the position. The building or program hiring committee will then review the applications of the qualified internal candidates. The committee will elect one of the following options: a) select one of the qualified candidates from the list without interviewing, b) elect to interview a selection from the list, or c) elect to interview all of the internal candidates from the list.
- 4) With approval of Human Resources, part-time employees may increase their FTE as an internal candidate, through the transfer process if selected by the building or program hiring committee.
- 5) With the approval of Human Resources, a building or program hiring committee may elect to consider substitutes who have worked for the District for at least 100 days during the past two (2) years as an internal candidate for a transfer.
- 6) Candidates not selected will be told why they were not selected for an in-District transfer, in writing, if requested. The hiring committee will review the written reasons and concur if requested by the principal or supervisor.
- c. **Step 3** Placement of an employee hired without a specific vacancy, converted from a Leave Replacement contract to a Regular Contract, or excessed from a school or program:
 - 1) Employees excessed (RIF'd) from their building or program will be placed prior to offering the position to a replacement employee, substitute, increasing the FTE of another employee, or filling the position from outside the District. Human Resources in consultation with building principals or supervisors will determine the placement of the excessed staff.
 - 2) Building principals or program supervisors may recommend and Human Resources may concur that a leave replacement/long term substitute's contract be converted to a regular contract.
 - 3) The District will identify any positions they wish to recruit for with the Association. A District hiring team(s) will be created to go to job fairs with the authority to provide letters of intent to candidates. These new hires will be hired to the District for positions "to be announced."

- Following consideration of internal transfer requests and the placement of excessed staff Human Resources in consultation with principals and supervisors will meet and place those staff covered by #2 or 3 above. Human Resources and the principals or supervisors may determine that time permits arranging for informal discussions with these individuals and the hiring committee from the potential building or program. If agreement is not reached by the impacted principals or supervisors Human Resources will make the placement decision.
- d. **Step 4** After completing steps 1 through 3 above any vacancies that have not been filled will be filled through consideration of external candidates. Human Resources will identify qualified applicants from the pool of external applicants for building or program hiring committees to consider. Hiring committees will determine who to interview, will conduct the interviews and will recommend a candidate.

3. Posting and Notices

Postings will be made available on the District's website.

Once during each school year, the District will provide each employee the opportunity to request a change of assignment or building transfer applicable to the following school year.

If the District elects to use option 2.b.3 above and does not select one of the internal applicants, the District will interview all other qualified District employees (not substitutes) who apply for the open position.

It is a goal of the District to inform candidates who are not selected before the knowledge of who was selected becomes public. To accomplish this goal the District will attempt to reach the candidates who were not selected by telephone or in person prior to or on the day the decision is made. Written notice will follow. An alternative call-in procedure may be established.

4. <u>Involuntary Assignments or Transfers.</u> Should it be necessary to transfer an employee from building, program or grade level and/or subject to another, the following conditions will prevail:

As much notification as possible will be given, in writing, by the Superintendent or designee to the employee being transferred or reassigned within a program.

At the request of the employee or the District, instruction-free duty time for preparation and orientation in the new school of two (2) workdays will be allowed to the employee transferred during the school year.

When the transfer is the result of Administrative decisions the District will assume responsibility for boxing and moving all but personal items.

- 5. <u>Moving Reimbursement.</u> Moves not requested by the employee will be compensated as follows:
 - Moves from one building to another building: .005 of the base salary.
 - Moves to or from a portable classroom on the same site: .004 of the base salary.
 - Moves from one classroom to another classroom on the same site: .003 of the base salary.

To receive compensation, individuals must complete a Services Rendered Form that is signed by the building principal. All moves by elementary staff, which fit one of the above categories, will be compensated. On-site secondary moves must involve a total change of homeroom to receive compensation.

6. New Facilities or Reconfiguration. At least nine (9) months prior to the opening of a new facility, realignment, or reconfiguration of the District, the District and Association will meet to develop the process for implementing the necessary change. The District and the Association may agree to a process that includes the suspension of the voluntary and involuntary transfer process set forth above. The process will be communicated to staff in writing prior to any staff change.

7. Contract Renewal and Resignation.

- a. Contracts for returning staff may be offered after April 15. Once offered, a staff member has 10 days to return the contract to Human Resources.
- b. A staff member may resign his/her contract for the subsequent school year any time on or before July 15. Upon receipt of the resignation the District will immediately release the staff member from his/her contract.
- c. After July 15 and during a contract year a staff member may not request to be released from his/her contract with less than thirty (30) days' notice. Once the request is submitted the District will post the position. Providing the District posts the position the staff member may be held to his/her contract until the end of the secondary semester grading period, until the completion of the elementary parent conference period, or until the position is filled, whichever occurs first.
- d. A staff member may appeal to be released from a contract aside from "c" above to a committee composed of 3 Association members and 3 District representatives. At least five of the six members of the committee must agree for the appeal to be granted.
- 8. <u>Transfer By-Pass Procedures.</u> Through the labor management process a staff member may be transferred or reassigned at any time for the benefit of the staff person and District. This exception to the transfer process set out above may be initiated by the staff person, supervisor, the Association or the District.

Article V Working Conditions

A. General Education Class Size and Special Education Workload

- General Education Class Size. Both the School Board and the Association recognize
 the effective utilization of staff members has a direct bearing upon the achievement of
 the students, e.g., since large class loads for teachers hinder effective learning, the
 Board agrees to give serious thought toward lowering class loads or teacher-student
 ratios.
 - a. Elementary building administrators will gather input from classroom teachers prior to assigning students to classrooms for the next school year in order to assign students to classes in a fair and equitable manner. Special needs students will be placed collaboratively by the building principal and the appropriate special needs staff.
 - b. The District will provide instructional assistant time, release time, or extra pay, at the District's option, if the following class sizes are exceeded:
 - 1) Grades K through 4: 26 FTE students
 - 2) Grade 5: 29 FTE students
 - 3) Grades 6 and 7: an average of 31 FTE students per class.
 - 4) Grade 8: an average of 32 FTE students per class
 - 5) Grades 9 through 12: an average of 33 FTE students per class

These numbers are conditioned on the District receiving full funding at no less than 51:1,000 at K-4 and 46:1,000 at 5-12.

- c. For each one (1) FTE student which exceeds the above numbers, the District will provide 55 minutes of instructional assistant time per week, or an average of one-half hour of release time per week, or \$8.00 in 2014-15 and 2015-16 and \$10 in 2016-17 per student per day, in lieu of such assistant time or release time. Class size shall be measured no earlier than October 1 and on the 25th calendar day of the second semester (or first working day thereafter) at the secondary level. The District will have ten (10) working days to lower the class size before the above other options will become available. Compensation or reimbursement will be retroactive to the beginning of the semester. The Principal will consult with the impacted staff about the option they would prefer as overload relief.
- d. Excluded from these are traditional large-scale classes, such as health and fitness, driver training, and music, etc. The District will attempt to keep such secondary-level classes at no more than 40 FTE students ("Performance" classes may exceed this limit), but exceeding such limits will not incur instructional assistant time/extra pay/release time except Health and Fitness classes over 40 FTE students will be provided the relief identified in paragraph c above.
- e. Elementary split-grade classes will have class size thresholds of three (3) less FTE students.
- f. When a multi-age classroom is created the teacher, principal and Teaching and Learning Department representative will meet to determine the additional support that the staff person needs and collaboratively develop a plan to meet the needs.

- g. When an elementary specialist is assigned the students of all or a portion of an additional class due to shortage of space or staff to provide contractual planning time, the elementary specialist will be provided hourly per diem at the fractional share of the class being assigned (e.g. one-fourth hourly per diem for taking one-fourth of the students from an additional class).
- 2. <u>Special Education Workload.</u> Staff will receive the relief identified below due to the higher needs of students requiring increased meeting time, communication with parents and staff, development of accommodations, and implementation of new curriculum and learning standards.
 - a. <u>Elementary Schools.</u> For each one (1) FTE IEP student above four (4), excluding those students who are on IEPs for only SLP, OT or PT services, the District will provide, at the employee's option, 55 minutes of instructional assistant time per week (if available), or \$6 per FTE student per day, or material reimbursement at the rate of \$6 per FTE student per day reimbursable monthly. IEP students shall be measured no earlier than October 1. Compensation or reimbursement will be retroactive to the beginning of the semester.
 - b. <u>Secondary Schools.</u> For each one (1) IEP student above four (4) per class period, excluding those students who are on IEPs for only SLP, OT or PT services, the District will provide \$6 per FTE student per day, or 55 minutes of instructional assistant time per week, or material reimbursement at the rate of \$6 per FTE student per day reimbursable at the semester and the end of the school year. IEP students shall be measured no earlier than October 1 and on the 25th calendar day of the second semester (or the 1st working day thereafter). Compensation or reimbursement will be paid monthly and retroactive to the beginning of the semester.
 - c. If ESA professional caseloads exceed median number of like-size school Districts, then the affected employee(s) will meet with the appropriate administrator or supervisor to identify possible remedies.
 - d. Washington Alternative Assessment System (WAAS) Portfolio: Annually the Special Education Director or designee will meet with teachers scheduled to complete WAAS Portfolio assessments to determine a plan for support to allow each teacher to complete the paperwork and assessment needed to meet the state requirements. The plan will be based on the current OSPI WAAS Portfolio requirements and the number of students to be assessed using the portfolio. Teachers will also be provided access to training on the portfolio process provided by OSPI.
 - e. SLP and OT/PT caseloads: Overload assistance will be available to SLP's when their individual caseloads meet the following conditions: Preschool or Kindergarten for each (1) IEP student above 46 (per 1.0 FTE staff) or for Grades 1-12 above 48 (per 1.0 FTE) the SLP will be given additional support. The support can include 55 minutes of paraeducator time per week or an additional hour of IEP writing time for every student over the above numbers. The additional support will be determined in collaboration with the Director of Special Services, the SLP department head, and the assigned SLP. Child counts will be held on the student day immediately following November 1, January 2, and March 1 to determine the needed additional support for the remainder of the school year.
- 3. <u>Overload Computation.</u> Overload reimbursement for either class size or IEP overloads will be computed from the first day the overload existed.

4. <u>Multiple Classes in Same Period</u>. If the district requires a teacher to teach multiple classes in the same period (excluding Special Education courses), the teacher will be paid a stipend of \$500 for two classes or \$750 for three classes.

B. Student Discipline

In the maintenance of a safe and sound learning environment, the District shall expect acceptable behavior on the part of all students who attend schools in the District. Discipline shall be enforced fairly and consistently, following guidelines of state law, District "Student Rights Procedures and Building Disciplinary Sanctions."

The Board, Superintendent and building administrators shall support and uphold employees in their efforts to maintain discipline in the District, and shall give immediate response to all employees' requests regarding discipline problems provided the employee has followed established District policy as referred to below.

In emergency situations regarding the exercise of authority by an employee to control and maintain order and discipline, the employee shall use reasonable and professional judgment concerning matters not provided for by specific policies adopted by the Board.

The District shall make available in each building multiple copies of the District's Student Rights Handbook. The building administrator shall meet with staff prior to the students' first day to develop and/or review building standards for administering corrective student discipline and other interventions and the uniform enforcement of those standards, including the identification of the lines of authority in the absence of the principal.

Pursuant to state law, in an emergency, a student may be removed immediately from a class, subject, or activity by a teacher or administrator and sent to the principal or a designated school authority, provided that the teacher or administrator has good and sufficient reason to believe that the student's presence poses an immediate and continuing danger to the student, other students, or school personnel or an immediate and continuing threat of disruption of the class, subject, activity, or education process of the student's school. The removal shall continue only until the danger or threat ceases or the principal or designated school authority acts to impose a short-term suspension, initiate a long-term suspension or an expulsion, or impose an emergency expulsion. This emergency removal authority is limited by, and subject to, state and federal requirements for students with disabilities. The rights of students with disabilities will be assured by the District through the procedures established under state and federal law, including calling the SST/Section 504 meeting in the case of suspension which approximates the statutory limit for these students.

To assist staff members of students with behavior problems who do not have IEP or 504 plans, behavior intervention specialists shall be available for support and consultation.

C. Controversial Issues

Controversial issues are a part of the District's instructional program when related to subject matter in a given grade level or specific curricular field. As a vital component of academic freedom, employees shall be primarily responsible for making decisions regarding methods and for recommending basic materials used for the instruction of students. This responsibility shall be tempered by the following:

1. Employees will use professional judgment in determining the appropriateness of the issue to the curriculum and the maturity of students. In the presentation of all controversial issues, the employee shall make every effort to effect a balance of biases, divergent points of view, and afford an opportunity for exploration by the students into all sides of the issue. The employee's responsibility shall be to show objectivity in order that various sides of controversial issues are given. To carry out this responsibility an employee shall be well informed in the areas being studied and present the issues in a manner in which the class perceives the objectives of the study and understands the issues involved and their implications. The appropriate

administrator shall review curricular matters of a clearly controversial nature. In the event that a request for reconsideration is made of the classroom curriculum or library materials, formal procedures shall be followed as outlined in Tahoma School District policy.

- In discussing controversial issues, the employee shall encourage students to express their own views, assuring that it be done in a manner that gives due respect to one another's rights and opinions. When discussing controversial issues, the employee shall respect positions other than his/her own. Students shall be encouraged, after class discussions and independent inquiry, to reach their own conclusions regarding controversial issues.
- 3. In any event materials and methods used will conform to the instructional materials policy of the District and should be appropriate to the grade and/or maturity of the students involved.

D. Safety/Environment

Any and all concerns related to safe working conditions shall be forwarded and channeled through a representative of the District Safety Committee, which shall continue to meet on a regular basis.

E. Faculty Facilities

The District will provide for its staff members a lounge area within each school building that is for their use. Staff lavatories shall be provided.

F. Liability, Assault or Injury

The District shall provide employees with insurance protection covering those employees while engaged in the maintenance of order and discipline and the protection of school personnel, students, and the property thereof where that is deemed necessary by such employees. Such insurance protection must include, as a minimum, liability insurance covering injury to persons and property and insurance protecting those employees from loss or damage of their personal property incurred while so engaged.

Any case of assault upon an employee shall be promptly reported to the immediate supervisor so that appropriate District action shall be initiated. The District shall promptly render assistance to the employee in connection with handling of the incident by law enforcement and judicial authorities.

Whenever an employee is absent from employment and unable to perform currently contracted duties as a result of personal injury sustained in the course of employment, the employee will be paid full salary for the period of absence. A portion of sick leave will be used to supplement Workers' Compensation, thereby equaling the employee's full day of pay. If the employee's sick leave is exhausted, then additional sick leave may be requested through Sick Leave Sharing.

The employee shall care for instructional materials and equipment and shall promptly report damage, loss, and theft of equipment, furniture, or fixtures to their supervisor.

G. Non-Discrimination

There shall be no unlawful discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment by reason of race, creed, color, national origin, age, sex, honorably discharged veteran or military status, sexual orientation, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability, or because of their membership or non-membership in employee organizations. The Association and the District will cooperate to assure compliance with nondiscrimination laws.

Article VI Evaluation

A. Purpose of Evaluation

The District and Association believe that professional development in the Tahoma School District is rooted in the intrinsic desire to be a life-long learner and provide quality learning experiences for all students. The goal of supervision and evaluation is to promote continual professional growth including the use of research based best practices in a supportive environment with clear performance expectations.

- The principal is an instructional leader and responsible for providing the leadership necessary to create an adult learning community focused on assisting the young people in the District's care to obtain the education they deserve. Principals use the roles of coach, consultant, and evaluator to support staff learning and growth.
- The teacher is a learner. To be an effective learner one must be able to accept that he/she is not perfect and is capable of improving or having a greater understanding of the complex task of teaching young people. Professional growth is supported by an evaluation system that identifies areas of growth as well as areas that meet or exceed standard.
- Where there is room for growth, teachers may have one or more areas that are not yet
 marked as distinguished or proficient. The system is committed to providing support
 and partnering with the teacher to improve practice in designated areas of growth over
 time.
- Ongoing feedback is crucial to continued professional growth. Such feedback must be evidence based including classroom observations and student and teacher artifacts.
- A safe, trusting environment where teachers are respected and valued is needed for constructive feedback.
- Reflection and goal setting is an essential part of professional growth.
- The people who make up our educational system have integrity. Teachers and administrators want to be successful and that success is based on students learning.
- We have a commitment to due process and fair treatment. Our primary focus remains building a system and climate that is based on the belief that all people want to perform well and care deeply about the success of the students and their colleagues.
- We are committed to communicating to staff issues/concerns regarding performance and committed to working collaboratively to support them over time.

B. Provisions Applicable to All Employees

- 1. <u>Classroom teacher</u> Certificated staff members who provide "academically-focused instruction to students" shall be evaluated using the TPEP evaluation model (either Comprehensive or Focused). See Sections C, D and E below.
- Non-classroom staff members Certificated staff members who do not provide "academically-focused instruction to students" shall be evaluated using the locally bargained criteria as contained in this agreement (either BEP or PDP). See Sections F and G below.
- 3. <u>Surveys</u> Student and/or parent perception data may be collected by the district or by an individual employee through mass surveys or other similar means. An administrator shall not use this data as part of an individual employee's year-end evaluation.

- 4. <u>Recording</u> All observations shall be conducted openly and in person. Audio, video or electronic devices shall not be used to record any class for the purpose of evaluation without knowledge of the employee. Such records shall not be used for any other purpose without employee permission.
- 5. <u>Career Assistance</u> The Association and District will seek or provide funding to create opportunity for employees and administrators to explore career shifts. Individual employees, the Association, or administrators may recommend that an employee take advantage of the career assistance program.
- 6. <u>Representation</u> An employee shall be entitled, upon request, to have present an Association representative during any meeting related to matters concerning their evaluation for the sole purpose of observation.
- 7. <u>Evaluator</u> Within each school, the principal shall be responsible for the evaluation of employees assigned to that school. An employee assigned to more than one (1) school shall be evaluated by the principal at the building where the most time is spent. In the event that time is evenly spent, the principals shall discuss and notify the employee who will be the evaluator.
- 8. Request for Alternate Evaluator An employee may request in writing to the Director of Human Resources an alternate evaluator. The Director of Human Resources may then designate another individual to perform the evaluation.
- 9. <u>Grievance</u> The procedures outlined in this language shall be subject to the Grievance Procedure. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the substantive and subjective aspects of an evaluation are specifically excluded from the Grievance Procedure.
- 10. <u>Required Courses.</u> The District will pay the costs of any course a staff member is required by the District to take. Any additional cost for credit or clock hours will be at the member's option and expense.
- 11. Other Forms. The supervisor may use a pre-conference form or informal feedback forms. If they so choose to use a form, they shall share the form with their staff as in a faculty meeting before they use the form. The form itself will not be placed in the personnel file.

C. Provisions Applicable Only to Certificated Classroom Teachers (both Comprehensive and Focused)

1. Instructional Framework

Classroom teachers will be evaluated using the UW CEL 5D+ TPEP evaluation framework.

2. Evaluation Cycle

All classroom teachers shall receive a comprehensive summative evaluation at least once every four years. The following categories of classroom teachers must receive an annual comprehensive summative evaluation: Classroom teachers who are provisional and any classroom teacher who received a comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating of Unsatisfactory or Basic in the previous school year. Classroom teachers who are not required to receive a comprehensive summative evaluation may receive a focused evaluation.

See the separate Memorandum of Understanding for initial transition to this evaluation model during the 2014-15 and 2015-16 school years.

3. Professional Development

Prior to being evaluated on the performance evaluation system each teacher shall receive adequate professional development to comprehend the instructional framework, the evaluative rubric, and process.

Before evaluating classroom teachers, principals and administrators will engage in professional development designed to implement the revised systems and maximize rater reliability.

4. Electronic Data Collection System

An electronic data collection system will be used to store artifacts and evidence as part of the evaluation process. The electronic data collection system adopted will be Homeroom. Any change to the adopted electronic data collection system will be mutually agreed upon by the District and the Association.

D. Provisions Applicable to Classroom Teachers on the Comprehensive Evaluation

Self-Reflection

The teacher will complete and share with his or her evaluator a self-reflection of their performance under the instructional framework no later than October 1 and again no later than May 1.

2. Goal Setting

- a. Prior to October 15 (or as soon as practical for teachers hired after October 1), the teacher and evaluator shall discuss professional goals, student growth measures and student growth goals to be used for the year.
- b. Student growth measures will be taken from multiple sources identified by the teacher, and must be appropriate and relevant to the teacher's assignment. Student achievement data must measure growth between two points in time. The goal for Student Growth Goals 3.1, 6.1 and 8.1 may use the same student growth measures.

3. Gathering of Evidence

- a. Evidence is observed practice, products or results of the teacher's work that demonstrates knowledge and skills of the educator with respect to the four-level rating system. Both the teacher and the evaluator shall contribute evidence to the overall assessment of professional performance. Evidence shall include artifacts produced, or resulting from, the normal course of professional performance during the school year.
- b. An accurate evaluation requires that documented evidence reflecting upon performance be used in the evaluation of the employee. For the purposes of professional growth, fairness requires that employees be made aware in a timely manner, of the evidence that will be used in their evaluation.
- c. The District commits to documenting evidence of performance readily available via observations and conversations to the greatest extent possible so as to lessen the time required to compile additional artifacts. If, after completing the minimum required observations, both the teacher and evaluator agree on the score for a criterion, no additional evidence is required to be collected for that criterion. It is the intent of the parties that every effort will be made to provide and collect ample evidence of proficiency. It is the nature and quality of the evidence, not the amount that determines its rating. Principals may request evidence in areas not yet consistent with a proficient rating but may not require a specific amount of evidence or number of artifacts.

4. Observations

Observations are one type of evidence of professional performance relevant to the evaluative criteria.

- a. Each teacher shall be observed in the course of professional performance at least two times for a minimum total of 60 minutes.
- b. Within the 60 minutes required above, new employees shall be observed at least once for a minimum total of 30 minutes during the first 90 calendar days of employment.
- c. Teachers in their third year of provisional status shall be observed at least three times for a minimum total of 90 minutes.
- d. At least one observation must be completed prior to the mid-year formative conference.
- e. At least one observation must be pre-scheduled.
- f. Additional "walk-throughs," with or without pre-observation and/or postobservation conferences, may be completed at any time. Information to be used in the evaluation must be shared with the teacher prior to completion of the summative evaluation.

5. Pre-Observation and Post-Observation Conferencing

- a. A pre-observation conference is optional at the request of the teacher or evaluator.
- b. The purpose of the pre-observation conference is to discuss matters such as the employee's student growth goals, the professional activities to be observed, the content, objectives, and strategies of the lesson, the length of the observation and possible observable evidence to meet the scoring criteria.
- c. A post-observation conference is optional at the request of the teacher or evaluator.

6. Mid-year formative conference

A mid-year formative conference shall be held on or before the last day of February to discuss:

- a. a formative evaluation of the teacher's performance to date;
- b. where that performance rates on the instructional framework rubric; and
- c. where additional evidence and support is needed.

7. Summative Conference

- a. An annual evaluation conference shall be completed at least two weeks prior to the end of each school year. Each required criterion shall be rated based on the components in that criterion and discussed collaboratively. This analysis will be based on a holistic assessment of the teacher's performance. If there is a dispute between the evaluator and the employee regarding the rating, the parties shall have an opportunity to submit additional evidence. The final decision is the responsibility of the evaluator.
- b. Two copies of the final evaluation shall be signed by both the evaluator and teacher to document receipt and completion only, and shall be submitted to the Human Resources office no later than the last day of the school year. The signature of the teacher does not imply that the employee agrees with its contents.

Criterion Level Scoring

Criterion level scoring shall be determined as follows:

# components	2	3	4	5	6	7	Criteria Score
Total Subscore	8	12	16	20	24	28	
						28	
						27	Distinguished
					24	26	4
					23	25	
				20	22	24	
				19	21	23	
			16	18	20	22	
			15	17	19	21	Proficient
		12	14	16	18	20	3
		11	13	15	17	19	
	8	10	12	14	16	18	
	7	9	11	13	15	17	
	6	8	10	12	14	16	
	5	7	9	11	13	15	
	4	6	8	10	12	14	Basic
1	3*	5	7	9	11	13	13 2 12
- 1	2	4	6*	8	10	12	
		3	5	7	9*	11	
			4	6	8	10	
				5	7	9	Unsatisfactory
					6	8	1
						7	

- 3* The teacher and administrator will have a conversation about whether the component will be scored as Basic or Unsatisfactory prior to the administrator assigning a score.
- 6* If a majority of the components are Unsatisfactory then the overall criterion will be scored as Unsatisfactory. If the components are evenly scored, then the teacher and administrator will have a conversation about the components prior to the administrator determining a final criterion score.
- 9* If a majority of the components are Unsatisfactory then the overall criterion will be scored as Unsatisfactory. If the components are evenly scored, then the teacher and administrator will have a conversation about the components prior to the administrator determining a final criterion score.

9. <u>Summative Performance Rating for Comprehensive Evaluation</u>

A classroom teacher shall receive a summative performance rating for each of the eight (8) state evaluation criteria. The overall summative score is determined by totaling the eight (8) criterion-level scores as follows:

1 = 8-14 Unsatisfactory

2 = 15-21 Basic

3 = 22-28 Proficient

4 = 29-32 Distinguished*

* A classroom teacher with a preliminary rating of Distinguished and a Low student growth rating will receive an overall Proficient rating.

10. Student Growth Scoring

a. Evaluators total the raw score on the five (5) student growth indicators embedded in the instructional framework (3.1, 3.2, 6.1, 6.2, and 8.1). The classroom teacher is given a score of Low, Average or High based on the scores below:

5-12 - Low

13-17 - Average

18-20 - High

In addition, a student growth score of 1 (Unsatisfactory) in any of the rubric rows will result in an overall Low student growth impact rating.

- b. Classroom teachers with a Low student growth rating will engage with their evaluator in a student growth inquiry pursuant to WAC 392-191A-100.
- c. Classroom teachers with a preliminary rating of Distinguished and a Low student growth rating will receive an overall Proficient rating. Classroom teachers with a preliminary rating of Distinguished and an Average or High student growth rating will receive an overall Distinguished rating.
- d. Classroom teachers with a preliminary rating of Basic or Proficient and a Low, Average or High student growth rating will receive an overall rating that is the same as the preliminary rating.
- e. The evaluations of classroom teachers with a preliminary rating of Unsatisfactory and a High student growth rating will be reviewed by the evaluator's supervisor who may adjust the final rating.

E. Provisions Applicable to Classroom Teachers on the Focused Evaluation Model

1. In the years when a comprehensive summative evaluation is not required, classroom teachers who received a comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating of Proficient or Distinguished in the previous school year may complete a focused evaluation.

2. Self-reflection

Same as Comprehensive. See Section D.1 above.

Goal Setting

Same as Comprehensive. See Section D.2 above.

4. Gathering of Evidence

Same as Comprehensive. See Section D.3 above.

5. Observations

Observations are one type of evidence of professional performance relevant to the evaluative criteria.

- a. Each teacher shall be observed in the course of professional performance at least two times for a minimum total of 60 minutes.
- b. At least one observation must be pre-scheduled.
- c. Additional "walk-throughs," with or without pre-observation and/or postobservation conferences, may be completed at any time. Information to be used in the evaluation must be shared with the teacher prior to completion of the summative evaluation.

6. <u>Pre-Observation and Post-Observation Conferencing</u>

Same as Comprehensive. See Section D.5 above.

7. Mid-Year Formative Conference

A mid-year formative conference may be held on or before the last day of February at the request of the teacher or evaluator to discuss:

- a. a formative evaluation of the teacher's performance to date;
- b. where that performance rates on the instructional framework rubric; and
- c. where additional evidence and support is needed.

8. Summative conference

Same as Comprehensive. See Section D.7 above.

9. Overall Summative Performance Rating

A summative score is determined through the scoring of the instructional and student growth rubrics for the criterion selected. The final criterion score will be considered the final summative score.

10. Student Growth Measures

The focused evaluation will include the student growth rubrics of the selected criterion. If criterion 3, 6 or 8 is selected, evaluators will use those student growth rubrics. If criterion 1, 2, 4, 5, or 7 is selected, evaluators will use the student growth rubrics in criterion 3 or 6, as selected by the teacher.

F. Provisions Applicable Only to Non-Classroom Staff on a Basic Evaluation Plan (BEP)

1. The following staff members will be evaluated on a Basic Evaluation Plan (BEP): provisional contract employees, employees with a formal plan of improvement, employees who have been removed from PDP in accordance with Section G.3 below, or employees on probation.

Goal Setting

Prior to October 15 (or as soon as practical for teachers hired after October 1), the employee and evaluator shall discuss professional goals to be used for the year.

3. Observations

Observations are one type of evidence of professional performance relevant to the evaluative criteria.

a. Each employee shall be observed in the course of professional performance at least two times for a minimum total of 60 minutes.

- b. Within the 60 minutes required above, new employees shall be observed at least once for a minimum total of 30 minutes during the first 90 calendar days of employment.
- c. Employees in their third year of provisional status shall be observed at least three times for a minimum total of 90 minutes.
- d. At least one observation must be completed prior to the mid-year formative conference.
- e. At least one observation must be pre-scheduled.
- f. Additional "walk-throughs," with or without pre-observation and/or postobservation conferences, may be completed at any time. Information to be used in the evaluation must be shared with the employee prior to completion of the summative evaluation.

4. <u>Pre-Observation and Post-Observation Conferencing</u>

- a. A pre-observation conference is optional at the request of the employee or evaluator.
- b. The purpose of the pre-observation conference is to discuss matters such as the professional activities to be observed, the content, objectives, and strategies of the professional activity, the length of the observation and possible observable evidence to meet the scoring criteria.
- c. A post-observation conference is optional at the request of the employee or evaluator.

5. <u>Mid-year formative conference</u>

A mid-year formative conference shall be held on or before the last day of February to discuss:

- a. a formative evaluation of the employee's performance to date;
- b. where that performance rates on the evaluative criteria; and
- c. where additional evidence and support is needed.

6. Summative Conference

- a. An annual evaluation conference shall be completed at least two weeks prior to the end of each school year. Each required criterion shall be rated based on the components in that criterion and discussed collaboratively. This analysis will be based on a holistic assessment of the employee's performance. If there is a dispute between the evaluator and the employee regarding the rating, the parties shall have an opportunity to submit additional evidence. The final decision is the responsibility of the evaluator.
- b. Two copies of the final evaluation shall be signed by both the evaluator and employee to document receipt and completion only, and shall be submitted to the Human Resources office no later than the last day of the school year. The signature of the teacher does not imply that the employee agrees with its contents.

G. Provisions Applicable Only to Non-Classroom Staff on a Professional Development Plan (PDP)

- 1. Staff members not on BEP are on PDP. A staff member will remain on a PDP unless they are removed as defined below.
- 2. Program coordinators, peers, and deans of students (in lieu of the principal) may play the role of coach or facilitator within the PDP process.

3. Overview of Professional Development Plan

- a. Professional Development Plans are designed to encourage and support the professional enrichment and growth of staff members in the District. Data generated while a staff member is under the PDP plan belongs to the staff member and may not be used in an employment decision.
- b. The staff member with the evaluator and, if appropriate, peer will work together to articulate a Professional Development Plan. (Use Addendum 7 and will meet formally and informally throughout the year to discuss progress of goals.
- c. Supervisors will determine a schedule over the course of the school year for goal development. Goals may be for more than one year. Goals should be developed collaboratively by the staff member, the supervisor and, if appropriate, peers.
- d. A final meeting with the supervisor, staff member and peer coach(s) will be held to analyze data, review success of goals and to sign the verification form for the personnel file.
- 4. <u>Filing.</u> The original copy of the PDP Verification Form shall be filed in the staff member's personnel file in the District's Human Resource Department.

5. Removal from Professional Development Plan (PDP)

- a. If after conducting "walk-throughs", goal setting, informal observations, communication and discussions regarding area(s) of needed support, and other interactions with the employee over time, the supervisor concludes a non-provisional staff member on PDP no longer approaches or meets standards or has ceased to work toward, or ceased to make sustained progress toward meeting standards, the supervisor will notify the staff member and the Human Resources Department that he/she is invoking the need for the employee to be placed on a Basic Evaluation Plan (BEP). The staff member shall be informed of the supervisor's decision to be placed on the BEP evaluation format prior to October 1. The supervisor will provide the Director of Human Resources with a brief statement of the supervisor's perceptions of the problem.
- b. The Human Resources Department, in collaboration with the Association, will coordinate the selection of an individual to support and assist the staff member in meeting area(s) of deficiency identified. The staff member, the supervisor, the identified support individual, and Association representative, if requested, shall meet to identify the specific area(s) of needed support. The role of the support individual is to promote growth, not to evaluate. No information shared between the evaluator and the support individual may be used as the basis for evaluation.
- c. Following one year, the supervisor may determine that adequate growth has been attained in which case the staff member can be returned to a PDP. If adequate growth has not been attained, the BEP process may continue.

H. Non-Probationary Plans of Assistance

- 1. The District shall require the following employees to participate in a non-probationary plan of assistance:
 - a. Any continuing contract employee covered under the evaluation procedures set forth in Section F or G above (non-classroom staff members) who receives an unsatisfactory evaluation at the end of the previous school year;
 - b. Any continuing contract employee covered under the evaluation procedures set forth in Section F or G above (non-classroom staff members) who has had a minimum of two (2) formal observations (for a total observation time of no less

than sixty minutes) which indicate the employee has serious performance deficiencies in one (1) or more areas defined in the observation and evaluation criteria in which instance such plan of assistance may be implemented at any time after the conclusion of the two required observations; and

- c. Any continuing contract employee covered under the evaluation procedures set forth in Section D or E above (classroom teachers) with more than five years of teaching experience who has received a Level 2 (Basic) rating at the end of the previous school year.
- 2. The District may require the following employees to participate in a non-probationary plan of assistance:
 - a. Any provisional employee;
 - b. Any continuing contract employee covered under the evaluation procedures set forth in Section C or D above (classroom teachers) with five or fewer years of teaching experience who has received a Level 2 (Basic) rating at the end of the previous school year.
- 3. For employees participating in non-probationary plans of assistance under subsections 1 and 2 above, the administrator, the employee, the Association and District shall attempt to develop a mutually agreeable written plan with appropriate support, resources and intervention strategies designed to improve the employee's effectiveness and to prevent the need to place the employee on probation. At least one (1) additional formal observation shall be held to determine if the employee has made sufficient progress in the identified areas of deficiencies. Said formal observation(s) shall not be conducted unless three (3) weeks have elapsed from the time of completion of the remediation plan.
- 4. The evaluations of certificated classroom teachers with a rating of Unsatisfactory whose immediately preceding evaluation rating was Distinguished or Proficient will be reviewed by the evaluator's supervisor.

I. Probation

Employees shall be placed on probation subject to the following:

- 1. At any time after October 15th, an employee whose work is not judged satisfactory based on district evaluation criteria shall be notified in writing by the Superintendent that the employee is being placed on probation commencing on the date identified in the notice.
- 2. For classroom teachers who have been transitioned to the revised evaluation system, the following comprehensive summative evaluation performance ratings mean a classroom teacher's work is "not judged satisfactory" as that term is used in subsection 1 above: Level 1 (Unsatisfactory); or Level 2 (Basic) if the classroom teacher is a continuing contract employee with more than five years of teaching experience and if the level 2 (Basic) comprehensive summative evaluation performance rating has been received for two consecutive years or for two years within a consecutive three-year time period.
- 3. The written notice of probation shall enumerate the specific areas of deficiency along with a reasonable program for improvement. In addition to the support and assistance of a second evaluator under paragraph 7 below, a reasonable program for improvement shall identify the satisfactory levels of performance to be achieved in the areas of deficiency and the supports or assistance offered to help the employee improve in those areas.
- 4. All written communications to the employee shall be served upon the employee personally or sent by certified or registered mail or by leaving a copy of the notice at

- the house of his/her usual abode with some person of suitable age and discretion then residing therein.
- 5. A probationary period shall be established beginning any time after October 15, for a minimum of sixty (60) days, and ending no later than May 1. The purpose of the probationary period is to give the employee the opportunity to demonstrate improvement in his/her areas of deficiencies.
- 6. During the probationary period the evaluator shall meet with the employee at least twice monthly to evaluate the progress being made on the remediation plan during the remediation process. A written evaluation of this progress will be provided in a timely fashion to the employee after each meeting.

7. Second Evaluator During Probation

- a. The evaluator shall identify one additional non-bargaining unit certificated employee to evaluate the probationer and aid the employee in improving his or her areas of deficiency.
- b. The second evaluator shall provide a written evaluation of the employee's performance to the evaluator, and provide a copy to the employee, no later than the conclusion of the probationary period. The evaluation shall be based on multiple observations of performance and a review of other available evidence, with a particular emphasis on the areas of deficiencies identified by the evaluator and any areas of disagreement identified and brought to the attention of the second evaluator by the employee. This evaluation shall use the district evaluation criteria and scoring methodologies in this Article to produce an overall summative score.
- c. Separate from this second evaluator, both the District and the Association reserve the right to appoint additional experts of their own choosing at any time to observe and evaluate the employee's performance.
- 8. Upon the conclusion of the probationary period, the evaluator shall evaluate the employee's progress in remediating his or her performance and provide a report to the employee and the Superintendent.
- 9. If a procedural error occurs in the implementation of a program for improvement, the error does not invalidate the probationer's plan for improvement or evaluation activities unless the error materially affects the effectiveness of the plan or the ability to evaluate the probationer's performance.
- 10. The Superintendent will fully consider all the evidence and facts of each particular case before deciding probable cause or causes exist for non-renewal of an employee's contract. In the event the Superintendent determines that there is probable cause or causes that the employment contract of an employee should not be renewed by the District for the next ensuing term, such employee shall be so notified in writing on or before May 15, preceding the commencement of such term. Such notification shall specify the cause or causes for non-renewal of contract.
- 11. Every such employee so notified at his/her request made in writing and filed with the Board within ten (10) days after receiving such notice, shall be granted opportunity for hearing to determine whether there is sufficient cause or causes for non-renewal of contract. If any such notification or opportunity for hearing is not timely given, the employee entitled thereto shall be conclusively presumed to have been reemployed by the District for the next ensuing term upon contractual terms identical with those which would have prevailed if his/her employment had actually been renewed by the Board for such ensuing term.

Article VII Reduction in Force

A. General Provisions

The Board will determine the educational program adopted by the district. The Superintendent will develop a list of employees to be recommended to the Board for a Reduction in Force if necessary in a given year to operate that educational program. For the purpose of this section, administrators may be reassigned as employees consistent with their experience and qualifications as employees set out below.

B. Definitions

Employees will be considered for retention in the employment category or categories for which qualified by either experience or training.

Experience and Training:

Experience: An employee is qualified by experience in any given category if assigned at least two (2) periods per day for at least one (1) semester in that specific category during the current or preceding five (5) years.

<u>Training:</u> An employee is qualified by training in any given category if the employee meets the requirements for Highly Qualified Teacher in the subject, holds current certification/endorsement for the subject, or has the equivalent of 45 quarter credits in the subject area.

- 2. **Categories:** Employees will be considered for retention in one or more of the following categories:
 - a. Elementary classroom teaching (K through grade 5)
 - b. Secondary classroom teaching (grades 6-12): Art, Language Arts, World Language (by each individual language to be offered), Alternative Education, Mathematics, Science, Social Studies, Traffic Safety Education, or CTE Endorsement including middle level technology
 - c. Support Services and Specialists: Counselors, Librarians, English Language Learners Specialists, K-12 Health and Fitness Teachers, Music Specialists (by each individual program to be offered), School Nurse, Social Workers, or Curriculum and Instruction Specialists
 - d. Special Education: Special Education Preschool Teacher, Elementary Special Education Teacher, Secondary Special Education Teacher, Speech Language Pathologists, Occupational Therapist, Physical Therapist, Vision Specialist, School Psychologist, or Behavior Intervention Specialists. An appropriate special education teacher certificate or satisfactory experience recognized by the District is required for qualification as a secondary or elementary special education teacher.
- 3. **Part Time Employees:** Less than 1.0 FTE employees will have seniority as established by this section. These employees will not be eligible for increased FTE or contract conditions other than those held at the time of retention determination.

C. Seniority

In establishing seniority for the purpose of Reduction in Force, the following criteria will be applied in the order in which they are listed to the employees covered by this section:

1. In order to qualify for ranking, the employee must possess such valid Washington State certification or other licenses or certificates as may be required by state law and regulations.

- 2. Employees will be placed into categories consistent with Article VII, Section B.
- 3. Employees identified above will be ranked as to length of contracted service as recognized by the District. Less than a full year of experience will be recognized as to the actual number of contracted days, converted to FTE.
 - a. In the event ties exist in the application above, those employees will be ranked as to column placement on the District salary schedule.
 - b. In the event ties still exist, a doctorate degree, master's degree, or baccalaureate degree as recognized by the District for salary purposes, will be recognized in that order.
 - c. In the event ties still exist, those employees within the category with the greatest number of credits accepted by the District toward progression on the District salary schedule will be ranked ahead of those employees with fewer credits.
 - d. In the event ties still exist, the length of contracted experience in the Tahoma School District shall prevail.
 - e. In the event ties still exist, the length of experience in the category will prevail.

4. Ranking Order (Seniority).

- a. Employees will be placed into categories based on experience. All employees will be listed in descending order in conformance with Article VII, Sections A, B and C. No later than February 15, an initial preliminary list will be ordered from the last to most senior employee and will include present assignment and other categories for which qualified. Employees who wish to appeal their placement on the seniority list have a three level appeal process. An employee must meet the timelines at each level to move to subsequent levels of appeal. If any of the dates fall on a day not part of the standard employment contract for staff, then the deadline will be moved to the next such work day.
- b. Employees who have additional information regarding experience and/or training will identify additional categories for which they believe to be qualified on a "Request for Consideration Form". This form must be received in the Human Resources Department no later than March 5. Information, as submitted by the employee and verified by the District Human Resources Department, will be used in determining Reduction in Force decisions.
- c. Any changes to the ranking order list as a result of Article VII, Section C.4.b will be reflected in a final ranking order list to be completed and communicated to Association members no later than March 15.
- d. Appeals to Final Ranking Order List: An employee who wishes to object to the final ranking order list must file a written appeal with the Human Resources Director. Such appeal will be submitted no later than April 1 and will include a full statement as to the facts on which the employee contends the list should be modified and recommended modification to be made. Disposition of the employee's appeal for modification will be completed no later than April 10. If the employee remains dissatisfied with the decision of the Human Resources Director, the employee may appeal that decision to the Board no later than April 15. The Board will hear the employee's appeal on the same evening as their last regularly scheduled board meeting in April. The Board's written decision will be communicated to the employee no later than May 5. Any changes to the official seniority list will be communicated to all employees.

Appeal Timelines

The chart below shows the timelines listed above. An employee must meet the timelines at each level to move to subsequent levels of appeal. If any of the above dates fall on a day not part of the standard employment contract for staff, then the deadline will be moved to the next such work day.

Topic	Completed no later than:	
Initial preliminary list	Feb 15	
Level 1: Request for consideration form	March 5	
Final ranking order list	March 15	
Level 2: Appeal to HR Director	April 1	
Response from HR Director	April 10	
Level 3: Request for Appeal to Board	April 15	
Appeal to Board	Last regular meeting in April	
Board Decision communicated	May 5	

D. Selection for Layoff

Staff selection will be made from the seniority list in descending order, from most to least senior employee, on the basis of the criteria listed above.

In the event an employee qualified above is not available for assignment within the present staff, the District will employ such additional certificated employees as may be required to staff the adopted educational program.

A list of employees to be non-renewed will be communicated to the Association on or before May 15.

When an employee is assigned to a category other than that held at the time of implementation of these procedures, the evaluations of the employee, during the initial year of assignment, will bear the notation that the evaluation is for an assignment other than that held at the time of implementation of these procedures.

E. Provisions for Re-Employment

Employees non-renewed as the result of reduction in force will be placed on an employment list according to seniority as of May 15 of the school year in which the decision to non-renew was made. The employee will have priority, in that order, in the filling of an open position for which qualified above until October 1 of the school year succeeding the school year in which the employee will be non-renewed (approximately 17 months). Individuals hired from said list will retain all rights and benefits accrued prior to non-renewal.

Individuals included on the employment list will inform Human Resources of any change in personal information (name, address, phone number), availability, or eligibility for employment.

Offers for employment by the District will be in writing and delivered in person or by certified mail. A copy of each offer will be communicated to the Association.

An individual will forfeit rights to employment as provided in this section if the individual signs a certificated employee contract with another District or does not accept the offer of employment as an employee with this District within five (5) working days and report for work within eleven

(11) working days from date of offer provided. However, no individual will forfeit rights to employment by virtue of signing or refusing to sign a limited contract with this District or by refusing a position with a lesser number of hours than that held during the year in which non-renewed.

F. Provisions for Reduction of Employees (ROE) Leave

The District will allow a number not to exceed five percent (5%) of the retained employees leave in accordance with the following:

- 1. The employee requesting ROE leave will file an application for ROE leave (form) with Human Resources.
- 2. The District will have the right to deny such leave in writing if the District considers said applicant essential to the orderly and effective operation of the educational program during the ensuing school year or if a qualified replacement is not included on the District employment list.
- 3. ROE leave will be granted for one (1) full contracted year only to permit the District to employ a qualified individual included on the employment list.
- 4. No employee will be granted ROE leave for more than one (1) year in duration and no employee may receive two (2) such leaves under this section.
- 5. The position of the employee on leave will be filled by a qualified individual included on the District's employment list. Said individual will not have continuing employment rights to the position to which temporarily assigned.
- 6. Said leave will in no way exempt the employee on leave from reduction consistent with these procedures during the ensuing or subsequent school years.
- 7. This subsection will in no way limit the District in the operation or management of the District educational program.
- 8. Employees taking leave under this subsection will be re-employed for the ensuing school year provided there is a position available for which the employee is qualified above.
- 9. Employees on leave will accrue no rights or benefits while on leave. If the employee returns to the District immediately following the year of leave, seniority and employee benefits will be reinstated at the level accrued at such time as the leave was granted or at such level as that agreed upon in a successor agreement.

Article VIII Grievance Procedure

A. Definitions

- 1. <u>"Grievant"</u> shall mean an employee or group of employees or the Association filing a grievance.
- 2. <u>"Grievance"</u> shall mean a claim by a grievant that a dispute or disagreement exists involving the interpretation or application of the terms of this Agreement.
- 3. <u>"Party in Interest"</u> is the person(s) making the claim and any person who might be required to take action or against whom action might be taken in order to resolve the claim.
- 4. "Days" shall mean working days except as noted in Section E1 of this procedure.

B. Rights to Representation

- 1. The Board shall recognize a Professional Rights and Responsibility Committee upon its selection by the Association. At least one committee representative shall be present for any meetings, hearings, appeals, or other proceeding relating to a grievance which has been formally presented unless the grievant formally requests otherwise.
- 2. If, in the judgment of the Association, as determined through its constitutional procedures, a grievance affects a group of employees or the Association, the Association may initiate and submit such grievance in writing to the Superintendent directly and the processing of such grievance shall be commenced at Level 2. The Association may process such a grievance through all levels of the procedure. A grievance involving more than one (1) supervisor and grievance involving the administrator not at the building level may be filed by the Association at Level 2.
- 3. In matters dealing with alleged violations of Association rights, the grievance shall be initiated at Level 2.
- 4. The Association, on its own, may continue and submit to arbitration any grievances filed and later dropped by a grievant, provided that the grievance involved the application or interpretation of the Agreement and was not resolved through other legal means, or such a resolution pending.

C. Individual Rights

- Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any employee
 having a complaint to discuss the matter via administrative channels and to have the
 issue resolved without the intervention of the Association, as long as the Association is
 notified in writing as to the disposition and that the disposition of the matter is
 consistent with the terms of this Agreement.
- 2. A grievant may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself/herself, or at his/her option, by an Association representative selected by the Association. If an aggrieved party is not represented by the Association, the Association shall have the right to be present and to state its views at all stages of the grievance procedure unless the grievant specifically requests otherwise.

D. Procedure

<u>Informal Meeting with the Supervisor:</u> The parties in interest acknowledge that it is usually most desirable for an employee and his/her immediately involved supervisor to resolve problems through free and informal communications. The employee may request Association representative(s) to attend this informal meeting(s) for the purpose of helping to clarify and articulate the concern, as well as describing potential area(s) of conflict with the Negotiated Agreement.

<u>Level 1 Written Grievance</u>: Following the informal meeting with the supervisor, and within twenty (20) working days of the time following knowledge of the act or condition which is the basis of the complaint, the grievant may present a written grievance to the immediately involved supervisor. The supervisor shall provide the aggrieved party with a written response to the grievance within six (6) working days after the receipt of the written grievance.

Level 2 Superintendent: If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of his/her grievance at Level 1, then the grievant shall have six (6) working days in which to refer his/her grievance to the Superintendent or his/her official designee. Upon receipt of the Level 2 grievance, the Superintendent or his/her official designee shall arrange for a mutually-agreeable date and time for a hearing with the grievant and/or the Association, to take place within ten (10) working days. The parties in interest shall have the right to include in the representation such witnesses and counselors as they deem necessary to develop facts pertinent to the grievance. Upon conclusion of the hearing, the Superintendent will have six (6) working days to provide his/her written decision, together with the reasons for the decision to the grievant.

Level 3 Arbitration: If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of his/her grievance at Level 2, he/she may with ten (10) working days after receiving the written response from the Superintendent, request in writing that the Association submit his/her grievance to arbitration. If the Association determines that the grievance involved the interpretation, meaning, or application of any of the provisions of this Agreement, it may, by written notice to the Superintendent, within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the request from the aggrieved person, submit the grievance to binding arbitration. If any question arises as to whether the issue is arbitrable, such question will first be ruled upon by the arbitrator selected to hear the dispute and will be based on whether the dispute involved an interpretation, meaning, or application of the terms of this Agreement.

Within a fifteen (15) day period from the date of the written notice of submission to arbitration, a request for an arbitrator will be made to an arbitration association. The parties will thereafter be bound by the rules and procedures of the designated arbitration association.

Neither party shall be permitted to assert in the arbitration proceedings any evidence that was not submitted to the other party before the completion of Level 2 meetings. Unless amended by the arbitrator, the arbitrator will hold hearings promptly and will issue a decision not later than twenty (20) days from the date of the close of the hearings, or if oral hearings have been waived, then from the date the final statements and proofs are submitted to him/her. The arbitrator's decision will be in writing and will set forth his/her findings of fact, reasoning, and conclusions on the issue submitted. The arbitrator will be without power or authority to make any decision that requires the commission of an act prohibited by law. The arbitrator shall rule on the interpretation of the terms of the contract and may not alter or revise the terms of the contract. The decision of the arbitrator will be conclusive, will be submitted to the Board and the Association, will henceforth constitute the accepted interpretation of the disputed matter and will be final and binding upon the parties.

The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to rule on any of the following:

- a. The termination of services of, or failure to re-employ any provisional employee.
- b. Any matter involving employee evaluation, provided that evaluation procedure shall be subject to the arbitrator's review.
- c. Any matter involving employee probation procedures, discharge, non-renewal, adverse effect or reduction in force.

The costs for the services of an arbitrator, including per diem expenses, if any, and his/her travel subsistence expenses and the cost of any hearing room, will be borne equally by the District and the Association. All other costs will be borne by the party incurring them.

E. Miscellaneous Provisions

1. Time Limits

The accompanying chart shows the timelines listed above. An employee must meet the timelines at each level to move to subsequent levels of appeal. Failure of the grievant or the Association to comply with any time limits specified in this procedure shall constitute withdrawal of the grievance. Failure of the District to respond to a written grievance within the time limits specified in this procedure shall allow the grievant to move the grievance to the next step of the grievance procedure.

The District and Association may mutually agree in writing to extend the time limits at any one of the steps. If any of the above dates fall on a day not part of the standard employment contract for staff, then the deadline will be moved to the next such work day.

When a grievance is submitted on or after June 1, time limits shall consist of all week days (excluding observed holidays), so that the matter may be resolved before the close of the school term or as soon as possible thereafter.

- 2. <u>No Reprisals.</u> No reprisals of any kind will be taken by the Board or the District against any employee because of his/her participation in this grievance procedure.
- 3. <u>Cooperation between the Association and the District.</u> The District and the Association will cooperate in the investigation of any grievance.
- 4. <u>Financial Responsibilities.</u> If hearings or any occasions initiated by the Superintendent or his/her official designee require that an employee or an Association representative be released from his/her regular assignment for the purpose of investigating or processing a grievance, then that employee or Association representative shall be released without loss of pay or benefits.
- 5. <u>Personnel Files.</u> All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants.
- 6. <u>Grievance Forms.</u> Any forms required for filing grievance, serving notices, taking appeals, reports and recommendations, and other necessary documents will be prepared jointly by the Superintendent and the Association so as to facilitate operation of the grievance procedure. The costs of preparing such forms shall be shared by the District and the Association.

Grievance Timelines

This chart summarizes the grievance timelines. An employee must meet the timelines at each level to move to subsequent levels of appeal. Failure of the grievant or the Association to comply with any time limits specified in this procedure shall constitute withdrawal of the grievance. Failure of the District to respond to a written grievance within the time limits specified in this procedure shall allow the grievant to move the grievance to the next step of the grievance procedure.

The District and Association may mutually agree in writing to extend the time limits at any one of the steps. If any of the above dates fall on a day not part of the standard employment contract for staff, then the deadline will be moved to the next such work day. When a grievance is submitted on or after June 1, time limits shall consist of all week days (excluding observed holidays), so that the matter may be resolved before the close of the school term or as soon as possible thereafter.

Topic	Completed no later than:			
Informal meeting with supervisor	Level 1			
Level 1: Written grievance to supervisor	20 working days after employee is aware of the act or condition			
Written response from supervisor	6 working days			
Level 2: Written appeal to Superintendent	6 working days			
Meeting with Superintendent	10 working days			
Written response from Superintendent	6 working days following the meeting			
Level 3: Notify the Association to pursue arbitration	10 working days			
The Association notifies district of intent to file for arbitration	15 working days			
Request for arbitration	15 working days			
Arbitrator's hearing and decision	20 working days, unless amended by the arbitrator			

Article IX Terms of the Agreement

A. Recognition

The Association shall be the sole representative of all the certificated personnel employed, or to be employed, by the Board with the exception of the Superintendent, the Deputy Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, Directors, the District Athletic Coordinator, principals, associate principals, and assistant principals.

After a substitute works thirty (30) days in the current school year or is hired to work in excess of twenty (20) consecutive days in the current school year, the substitute will be included in the bargaining unit provided that only the following sections will apply to substitutes: Article IX, Section H5; Article IV, Sections A and B and Article V Sections B, C, E, and F. Access to the grievance procedure shall apply for those provisions. Casual day-to-day substitutes are paid the substitute rate of pay.

Twenty (20) consecutive-day substitutes shall be paid at their salary schedule placement on the 21st day, retroactive to day one.

B. Gender

Unless the context in which they are used clearly requires otherwise, words used in this Agreement denoting gender shall include both the masculine and feminine.

C. Status of the Agreement

This Agreement shall become effective when ratified and signed by the Board and the Association. No change in this Agreement either in whole or in part shall be valid unless ratified and signed by the parties.

Individual contracts between the District and individual employees shall be subject to and consistent with the terms of this Agreement. If an individual contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement, during its duration, shall be controlling.

This Agreement shall supersede language in District rules, regulations, or policies, which is inconsistent with its terms.

Association representatives may meet with the Superintendent or his/her designee at mutually agreeable times during the school year to review problems and practices concerned with the administration of this Agreement.

With the approval of the Superintendent, the District shall supply the Association with the information that the Association deems necessary for negotiations.

D. Entire Agreement

The Agreement expressed herein in writing constitutes commitments between both parties and may be altered, changed, added to, or modified only through the voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in written and signed amendment.

E. Conformity to Law

If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this agreement to any employee covered hereby shall be found contrary to law, such provision or application shall have effect

only to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

F. Variance Requests

Building or programs may apply for variances to specific provisions of this Agreement to both the Association and the District. Variances, if approved, will be for specific time periods agreed to by the parties. The Association and the District may agree to a joint variance process or each may apply its own criteria.

G. Printing/Distribution

Within a reasonable time following the ratification and signing of this Agreement by the parties, the Association shall distribute an electronic copy of the Agreement to each certificated employee. Upon individual request, a printed copy will be provided. Prior to printing, the cost shall be agreed upon by the Association and the District. In subsequent years during the life of this Agreement, supplements shall be issued. The cost of printing shall be shared equally between the District and the Association.

H. Association/District Rights and Responsibilities

- 1. <u>Posting and Bulletin Board Rights.</u> The Association or its official representatives shall have the right of access and use of bulletin boards in the various rooms or places designated for faculty use in the Tahoma School District. All posted materials shall be dated and signed by the responsible Association member.
- 2. <u>School Mail Rights.</u> The Association or its official representative shall have reasonable access to and use of the school mail system in the Tahoma School District with the approval of the Superintendent. All materials shall be dated and signed by the responsible Association member. The parties will determine the appropriate use of the e-mail system for Association and staff.
- 3. <u>Building Use.</u> The Association may use District school buildings for meetings and to transact official business on school grounds at all reasonable times outside the regular school day with the approval of the Superintendent.
- 4. Right to Organize Classes and Workshops. Certificated staff members in the Tahoma School District shall have the right to organize and carry out workshops and classes. These workshops and classes may be held on school property, whether these courses are for college credit, in-service District credit, or for noncredit. Upon parental permission, students and/or their parents may be involved in these workshops and classes. Any classes or workshops will not interfere with the normal school day activities or any other scheduled sanctioned activities. The District has the right to require a reasonable rental for the use of school district facilities.
- 5. Representation Fee Deductions. In the event that any employee employed after September 1, 1983, fails to sign and deliver an assignment of wages form described herein, the Board agrees to deduct from the salary of such employee a representation fee in an amount equal to full membership dues required of a member of the Association; except for employees who have joined the Association and paid by means other than payroll deduction, as verified by the monthly Association list. Any employee who was not a member of the Association and was not paying the representation fee as of August 1, 1983, shall not be subject to this provision. Representation fee deductions shall be handled and transmitted by the Business Office in the same fashion as membership deductions. Substitute membership in the Association is optional. Any employee claiming a bone-fide religious objection shall notify the Association and the District of the objection in writing. Pending determination of this

bona fide religious objection, the District agrees to deduct from the salary of the employee claiming the objection an amount equivalent to the representation fee; provided, however, that the monies shall not be transmitted until such time as the District is notified that a final determination pursuant to the law has been made. Upon final determination the Association will notify the District as to where to release the money that has been withheld.

The Association shall hold the District harmless from any liability caused by the administration of this section. Substitute membership in the Association is optional.

I. No Strike/No Lock-Out

The Association agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will not cause or encourage its members to engage in any strike or other work stoppage. The District agrees it will not lock-out its employees during the term of this Agreement.

J. Rights of the Board

The Board and the Association recognize that the Board has certain powers and duties that under the Constitution and Laws of the state of Washington may not be delegated, limited, or abrogated by an agreement with any party.

It is the intention of the parties hereto that all rights, powers, prerogatives, duties, and authority of the Board are retained by the Board except for those which are specifically abridged or modified by this Agreement. Such abridgment or modification will be to the extent specifically set forth in this Agreement and such abridgments or modifications are to be strictly construed.

K. Subcontracting

The District will negotiate pursuant to the duty imposed by RCW 41.59 and rules of OSPI prior to subcontracting any bargaining unit work. This section shall not apply to subcontracting with other state-supported educational institutions.

L. Duration and Commitment

We are committed to the belief in a collaborative process as embodied in this agreement.

This agreement shall become effective September 1, 2014 and shall continue in effect through August 31, 2018. During the duration of this Agreement the parties mutually agree to resolve problems and address concerns that arise. The parties commit to continue a collaborative process to meet the interest and resolve problems identified by the parties. The parties agree to meet no later than the spring 2018 for the purpose of negotiating a successor agreement.

Contingent on two (2) levy collections in each year, the District will continue the compensation for the Responsibility Contract and the Mandatory Supplemental Contract.

We shall monitor the progress made toward achieving the collaborative building decision making models through the use of action research, surveys and research on readiness of buildings to undertake change. We will mutually agree on criteria for measuring readiness for change and we will provide that criteria to building staff for their consideration. When a building believes that it is ready to address compensation issues it will notify the Association and District. Information, guidance and findings will be shared with buildings as the building determines its ability to implement the changes identified in this Agreement.

This Agreement shall reopen upon written request by either party to consider the impact of newly legislated and/or state-funded programs. Additionally, this Agreement may be reopened at any time during its term upon mutual written consent of the District and the Association.

####





ADDENDA

to the

NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT

September 1, 2014 – August 31, 2018

between the

TAHOMA SCHOOL DISTRICT

and the

TAHOMA EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Addenda

The following pages include addenda 1 – 14

Addendum 1 – State Allocation Model

Addendum 2 - Activity Salary Schedule

Addendum 3 – Supplemental Contracts for District Leadership Needs

Addendum 4 - Grievance Form

Addendum 5 – TEA Adopted Code of Ethics of the Education Profession

Addendum 6 - Professional Goals Form - Comprehensive

Addendum 7 - Professional Goals Form - Focused or PDP

Addendum 8 – Comprehensive Evaluation Form

Addendum 9 - Educational Staff Associate (ESA) Formal Observation Form

Addendum 10 – Educational Staff Associate (ESA) Formal Evaluation Form

Addendum 11 – Verification of Completion of One Year of PDP Form

Addendum 12 – Verification of Completion of One Year on Focused

Addendum 13 – Curriculum Documentation Process

Addendum 14 - Building Decision Making Matrix Template

TAHOMA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 409 2014/2015 WASHINGTON STATE ALLOCATION MODEL (SAM)

YRS	ВА	BA+15	BA+30	BA+45	BA+90	BA+135*	MA	MA+45	MA+90/PHD
0	\$34,048	\$34,968	\$35,920	\$36,875	\$39,939	\$41,913	\$40,820	\$43,885	\$45,860
1	\$34,506	\$35,439	\$36,403	\$37,400	\$40,496	\$42,459	\$41,274	\$44,370	\$46,332
2	\$34,943	\$35,884	\$36,859	\$37,933	\$41,020	\$43,004	\$41,731	\$44,818	\$46,802
3	\$35,393	\$36,343	\$37,329	\$38,437	\$41,518	\$43,549	\$42,164	\$45,243	\$47,276
4	\$35,834	\$36,826	\$37,818	\$38,964	\$42,064	\$44,110	\$42,618	\$45,718	\$47,765
5	\$36,290	\$37,287	\$38,288	\$39,498	\$42,586	\$44,673	\$43,080	\$46,169	\$48,256
6	\$36,759	\$37,734	\$38,769	\$40,039	\$43,113	\$45,211	\$43,552	\$46,626	
7	\$34,582	\$38,572	\$39,621	\$40,960	\$44,079	\$46,235	\$44,438	\$47,556	\$48,723
8	\$38,787	\$39,831	\$40,905	\$42,355	\$45,516	\$47.751	\$45,832	\$48,994	\$49,713
9		\$41,135	\$42,262	\$43,765	\$46,999	\$49,310	\$47,241		\$51,228
10			\$43,635	\$45,247	\$48,524	\$50,913	\$48,724	\$50,477	\$52,788
11				\$46,772	\$50,121	\$52,557		\$52,003	\$54,390
12				\$48,249			\$50,249	\$53,599	\$56,034
13				THITTITITI	\$51,761	\$54,269	\$51,835	\$55,238	\$57,748
					\$53,440	\$56,024	\$53,476	\$56,918	\$59,501
14					\$55,128	\$57,844	\$55,165	\$58,716	\$61,322
15					\$56,563	\$59,349	\$56,599	\$60,242	\$62,917
16					\$57,693	\$60,535	\$57,731	\$61,447	\$64,174

^{*}Persons holding a bachelor's degree as the highest degree & whose total eligible credits were 135 or more before January 1, 1992, are grandfathered at the BA+135 column. This column is closed to all other placements.

Addendum 2 - Activity Salary Schedule

High School

Experience Years	0	1	2	3	4
Annual Advisor	\$2,793	\$2,886	\$2,980	\$3,073	\$3,030
Debate Advisor (reg)	\$4,163				75 77 3
Debate Advisor (post)	\$1,785				
Debate Asst. Advisor (reg)	\$3,124				
Debate Asst. Advisor (post)	\$1,340				
Math Team Advisor	\$1,428				
Robotics Advisor (state)	\$4,163				
Robotics Advisor (nt'l)	\$1,785				
Robotics Asst. Advisor (state)	\$3,124				
Robotics Asst. Advisor (nt'I)	\$1,340				
STEP Project Coordinator	\$1,500				
We the People (state)	\$4,163				
We the People (nt'l)	\$1,785				

Band Advisor	\$4,731	\$4,889	\$5,046	\$5,205	\$5,360
Colorguard Advisor	\$2,500		THE RESERVE	Dec 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
Marching Band Advisor	\$2,500				
Pep Band Advisor	\$2,500				
Percussion Advisor	\$2,500				
Vocal/Choir Advisor	\$4,731	\$4,889	\$5,046	\$5,205	\$5,360
*Drama Director/Play	\$3,109	\$3,213	\$3,317	\$3,420	\$3,523
*Drama Director/Musical	\$3,730	\$3,855	\$3,980	\$4,104	\$4,227
Musical Director/Musical	\$3,264	\$3,373	\$3,483	\$3,591	\$3,699

^{*\$5,283} will be allocated for classified support including but not limited to the following: Costume Design, Set Design, Choreography, Rehearsal Accompanist. The drama director(s) will determine the allocation of the support resources to support each year's productions.

Junior High/Middle School

Experience Years	0	1	2	3	4
Activity Coordinator/Middle	\$2,872	7 7			
Activity Coordinator/TJHS	\$1,961				
Annual Advisor	\$2,118	\$2,189	\$2,260	\$2,329	\$2,399
Athletic Coordinator/Middle	\$1,785				THE REAL PROPERTY.
Athletic Coordinator/TJHS	\$5,744				
Robotics Advisor/Middle	\$1,500				
Robotics Advisor/TJHS	\$2,500				

**Band Advisor	\$3,515	\$3,632	\$3,749	\$3,867	\$3,983
**Vocal/Choir Advisor	\$3,515	\$3,632	\$3,749	\$3,867	\$3,983
**If staff serve as itinerant or in split scho	of assignments, teachers wil	I meet with represen	tatives of the labor m	nanagement team to	
determine stipend amount(s).					

*Drama Director/Play	\$2,487	\$2,570	\$2,654	\$2,736	\$2,818
*Drama Director/Musical	\$2,487	\$2,570	\$2,654	\$2,736	\$2,818

^{*\$7,116} will be allocated for classified support including but not limited to the following: Music Director, Costume Design, Set Design, Choreography, Rehearsal Accompanist, Assistant Director. The drama director(s) will determine the allocation of the support resources to support each year's productions.

Elementary School

Elementary Music Specialist	\$2,000	

Addendum 3 – Supplemental Contracts for District Leadership Needs

Position	% of base	Days Per Diem	Rate	Comments
504 Coordinator			\$75	per plan
Advanced Placement Coordinator	I Comment		\$750	
Camp Casey Assistant Director	4.50%			
Camp Casey Attendee	1%			Per session
Camp Casey Counselor	2%			
Camp Casey Director	12.50%			
Camp Casey Overnight Supervisor	0.25%			Per session
Chemical Hygiene Officer			\$250	
Dean of Students		20		Per FTE
District Drug and Alcohol Prevention Coordinator	15%	5		
District Library Chairperson	5%			
EEP Site Supervisor			\$5,000	
EEP Site Supervisor/Summer			\$1,500	A COLUMN TO THE TOTAL TO THE TOTAL T
Elementary Counselors/Social Workers		3		
Elementary Drama			\$1,500	Per elementary school & RRC
Elementary Honor Band			\$1,500	Per elementary school
Elementary Honor Choir			\$1,500	Per elementary school
ELL Coordinator		10		
Gifted Coordinator	10%	8		
GLAD Trainer			\$500	
Librarian Elementary		5		Full days per school location
Librarian High School		10		Full days per school location
Librarian Junior High/Middle School		7		Full days per school location
Mentee Teacher			\$200	
Mentor Teacher		1.5	\$600	
National Board Candidate Leader			\$2,000	
Nurse		2		
Nurse Coordinator	3%	10		
Preschool Coordinator		6		
Psychologists		10		Prorated to FTE
Reading Coordinator	10%			
Secondary Counselor		10		Per FTE
Secondary Head Counselor (per FTE)		15		Per FTE
Site Prevention Program Coordinator			\$2,000	Four (4) total district wide
Special Education Coordinator	10%	20	7,	
Substitute Coordination			\$1,030	One sub at THS
Summer School Coordinator	15%			
Sustainability Coordinator (Green Team Leader)			\$500	Per school
T & L 10 Tech Teacher Leader			\$500	
T & L 10 Tech Teacher Leader/Facilitator/Tech			7000	
Summit			\$1,500	
T & L Content Area Coordinator			\$1,000	
T & L Content Area Demonstration Teacher			\$1,500	
T & L Content Area Facilitator			\$500	
T & L Department Support Staff		15	7000	
T & L Teacher Leader			\$500	
Theater Manager			\$12,000	
THS Activity Coordinator	40%		+ ==,000	

Addendum 4 - Grievance Form



Tahoma Education Association

PO Box 184 Maple Valley, WA 98038

Official Grievance - Complaint by the Aggrieved

Aggrieved Person(s):		
Work Phone(s):		
School:		
Supervisor(s) Against Who	m Grievance is Filed: _	
Association Grievance Rep	resentative:	
UniServ Representative:		
Statement of Grievance:		
		strict violated the Collective Bargaining
Article Section	states that:	, and any other that may apply.
Relief Sought:		
in compliance with the CBA by an arbitrator.	A and any other remedy	that may be deemed fair and appropriate
Signature of the Aggrieved		Date

Cc

Addendum 5 – TEA Adopted Code of Ethics of the Education Profession

The educator measures his/her success by the progress of each student toward realization of his/her potential as a worthy and effective citizen. The educator, therefore, works to stimulate the spirit of inquiry, the acquisition of knowledge and understanding, and the thoughtful formulation of worthy goals. In fulfilling his/her obligation to the student, the educator:

- 1. Shall not, without just cause, restrain the student from independent action in his/her pursuit of learning and shall not, without just cause, deny the student access to varying points of view.
- 2. Shall not deliberately suppress or distort subject matter for which he/she bears responsibility.
- 3. Shall make reasonable effort to protect the student from conditions harmful to learning or to health and safety.
- 4. Shall conduct professional business in such a way that he/she does not expose the student to unnecessary embarrassment or disparagement.
- 5. Shall not on the ground of race, color, creed, or national origin exclude any student from participation in or deny him/her benefits under any program, nor grant any discriminatory consideration or advantage.
- 6. Shall not use professional relationships with students for private advantage.
- 7. Shall keep in confidence information that has been obtained in the course of professional service, unless disclosure serves professional purposes or is required by law.
- 8. Shall not tutor for remuneration students assigned to his/her classes, unless no other qualified teacher is reasonably available.

Addendum 6: Professional Goals Form -- Comprehensive

Tahoma School District #409 FALL CONFERENCE FORM

Comprehensive Evaluation

Employee Name:	Current Position:	Location: Sch. Yr.:
members in the Tahoma Scho	is are designed to accommodate the professol District. The staff member, colleague and strategies to meet those goals. Approve student learning.	and supervisor will work together to
Complete a self-evaluation on	the TPEP rubric prior to the confer	ence.
What areas did you identify a the rubric.	s strengths on your self-assessmer	nt? Name specific components fro
What growth areas did you want to focus on this year?	identify on your self-assessment?	What specific components do yo
What will you use as evidence	e of growth in the areas you identifie	ed?
What support, resources, and	l/or training will help support growth	n for you and your students?
		Ginn at wall the
Signature/date		Signature/date

Addendum 7: Professional Goals Form - Focused or PDP

Tahoma School District #409 GOAL FORM

Professional Development Plan: Focused or PDP

Employee Name:	Current Position:	Location:	Sch. Yr.:
members in the Tahoma School Dist	designed to accommodate the professiona trict. The staff member, colleague and supe egies to meet those goals. Plans should cle	ervisor will work togethe	
State Criterion selected:	e student learning.		
State Chieffen Colocted.			
What are the reasons you selected	that criterion?		
What are your goals within that cri	iterion?		
Milat are your goals within that ch	iterioni		
What is your plan of action for ach	nieving those goals? Who, what, whe	re, when, how?	
What will you use as evidence of a	achievement of your goals?		
What support, resources, and/or to	raining will help you achieve your go	als?	
		A	
Signature/date		Signature/date	

Addendum	8: Com	prehensive Evalu	ation Form, page	1			
Employee Name:							
Current Position:	-						
Location:	-		School Year:				
Criterion 1	Center	ng instruction on hig	h expectations for stud	lent achievement	SCORE (1-4)		
Criterion 2	Demon	strating effective tea	ching practices				
Criterion 3	-	nizing individual stude ies to address those	ent learning needs and needs	developing			
Criterion 4		Providing clear and intentional focus on subject matter content and curriculum					
Criterion 5	Fosteri	Fostering and managing a safe, positive learning environment					
Criterion 6		Using multiple student data elements to modify instruction and improve student learning					
Criterion 7	Commi	Communicating and collaborating with parents and school community					
Criterion 8		ing collaborative and stional practice and st	collegial practices foc udent learning	used on improving			
OSPI App	roved S	ummative Scorin	g Band				
8 – 1	4	15 – 21	22 – 28	29 - 32			
1 - Unsatisfa	ctory	2 - Basic 3 - Proficient 4 - Distinguished					

Overall Criterion Score:

TAPPIOTOG OTGGO	nt Growth Impact Rating	
5 – 12	13 – 17	18 - 20
Low	Average	High

Addendum 8: Comprehensive Evaluation Form, page 2

Employee Name:		
Current Position:		
Location:	School Year:	

OVERALL RATING:

Summative F	Rating & Impact or	n Student Learn	ing Matrix	
	Distinguished	Proficient Rating Student Growth Inquiry	Distinguished Rating	
Summative Rating	Proficient	Proficient Rating Student Growth Inquiry	Proficient Rating	
	Basic	Basic Rating Student Growth Inquiry	Basic Rating	
	Unsatisfactory	Unsatisfactory Rating Plan of Improvement		
Consequences as a result of Intersection between Summative Rating and Impact on Student Learning Rating		Low Impact on	Average High Student Learning	

Tahoma School District #409 Standards for Quality Professional Practice Educational Staff Associate (ESA) Personnel Formal Observation Form

	Problem Area	Approaches Standard	Meets/Exceeds Standard	Not Observe at this time
KNOWLEDGE AND SCHOLARSHIP IN SPECIALIZED FIELD				
 Demonstrates knowledge of the principles of human growth and development, and remains current in content, theory, practice and research related to the field. Exhibits the ability to explain child developmental concepts and serve as a resource of information for other school personnel. Relates and applies knowledge, research findings and theory to develop a program of services Demonstrates a strong knowledge of designing practices within the education system to meet the special needs of individual students. 				
MANAGEMENT OF THE SPECIAL AND TECHNICAL ENVIRONMENT				
 Selects and recommends assessment materials, resource materials, and equipment appropriate to student needs. Demonstrates a broad knowledge of resource and assessment materials, including both standardized and non-standardized. Insures that the proper application and interpretation of such assessments. Protects student and family information as mandated by federal and state regulations and consistently meets statutory requirements. 				
INVOLVEMENT IN ASSISTING PUPILS, PARENTS, AND EDUCATIONAL PERSONNEL				
 Plans and implements a program to serve the needs of the school population, and the special needs of individual students. Initiates and/or follows through on recommendations for counseling groups and other support services to meet the special needs of individual students. Consults with appropriate District staff members concerning the development, coordination and/or extension of services to those needing specialized programs. Effectively leads meetings and discussions to determine the delivery of services to students when needed. Responds promptly to requests for support and concerns expressed by other support and instructional staff members. 				

Addendum 9: Educational Staff Associate (ESA) Formal Observation Form, page 2

	Problem Area	Approaches Standard	Meets/Exceeds Standard	Not Observed at this time
INVOLVEMENT IN ASSISTING PUPILS, PARENTS, AND EDUCATIONAL PERSONNEL (CONTINUED)				
 Develops good relationships with parents and community by working constructively with them to improve the educational program for individual and groups of students Presents the school's program to the public when opportunities are available in a professional manner. 				
SPECIALIZED SKILLS				
 Designs and conducts a structured guidance or other specific instructional program addressing the identified academic, personal/social, and career needs of students as applicable. Instructional goals and behavioral expectations are clear and effective. Provides guidance and inservice to other staff members as appropriate to support District Outcomes and Indicators. Accesses and mobilizes partnerships with other educational and social agencies to support the needs of students and families as needed. Assists instructional staff and administrators to utilize specialized information into the regular curricular program. Administers assessment procedures or organizes and assists those who will administer assessment procedures. 				
PROFESSIONALISM				
 Responds to parent and staff questions and concerns in an appropriate and timely manner. Actively seeks opportunities for professional development to enhance knowledge and skills related to the services provided. Utilizes peer and supervisor feedback to refine and shape practices. Discusses problems, new ideas, gives & receives feedback respecting and accepting various viewpoints. Meets all contractual responsibilities in a professional manner and demonstrates a strong commitment to the students served and to the profession. Implements an effective system for managing timelines and paperwork associated with the profession. Demonstrates an awareness of one's professional strengths and limitations by efforts to improve or enhance competence through a variety of professional development opportunities. 				
The signature below does not necessarily imply that the employee and discussed it with the evaluator and has been provided a copy. I	Employee may atta	ach a statement.	-	
Employee Signature				
Evaluator Signature	Date _			
Employee Statement Attached? Yes No				

Tahoma School District #409 Standards for Quality Professional Practice Educational Staff Associate (ESA) Personnel Evaluation Form

	Problem Area	Approaches Standard	Meets/Exceeds Standard	Not Observed at this time
KNOWLEDGE AND SCHOLARSHIP IN SPECIALIZED FIELD				
Demonstrates knowledge of the principles of human growth and development, and remains current in content, theory, practice and research related to the field. Exhibits the ability to explain child developmental concepts and serve as a resource of information for other school personnel. Relates and applies knowledge, research findings and theory to develop a program of services. Demonstrates a strong knowledge of designing practices within the education system to meet the special needs of individual students.				
MANAGEMENT OF THE SPECIAL AND TECHNICAL ENVIRONMENT				
Selects and recommends assessment materials, resource materials, and equipment appropriate to student needs. Demonstrates a broad knowledge of resource and assessment materials, including both standardized and non-standardized. Insures that the proper application and interpretation of such assessments. Protects student and family information as mandated by federal and state regulations and consistently meets statutory requirements.				
NVOLVEMENT IN ASSISTING PUPILS, PARENTS, AND EDUCATIONAL PERSONNEL				
Plans and implements a program to serve the needs of the school population, and the special needs of individual students. Initiates and/or follows through on recommendations for counseling groups and other support services to meet the special needs of individual students. Consults with appropriate District staff members concerning the development, coordination and/or extension of services to those needing specialized programs. Effectively leads meetings and discussions to determine the delivery of services to students when needed. Responds promptly to requests for support and concerns expressed by other support and instructional staff members.				

Addendum 10: Educational Staff Associate (ESA) Formal Evaluation Form, page 2

	Problem Area	Approaches Standard	Meets/Exceeds Standard	Not Observed at this time
INVOLVEMENT IN ASSISTING PUPILS, PARENTS, AND EDUCATIONAL PERSONNEL (CONTINUED)			П	П
 Develops good relationships with parents and community by working constructively with them to improve the educational program for individual and groups of students Presents the school's program to the public when opportunities are available in a professional manner. 				
SPECIALIZED SKILLS				
 Designs and conducts a structured guidance or other specific instructional program addressing the identified academic, personal/social, and career needs of students as applicable. Instructional goals and behavioral expectations are clear and effective. Provides guidance and inservice to other staff members as appropriate to support District Outcomes and Indicators. Accesses and mobilizes partnerships with other educational and social agencies to support the needs of students and families as needed. Assists instructional staff and administrators to utilize specialized information into the regular curricular program. Administers assessment procedures or organizes and assists those who will administer assessment procedures. 				
PROFESSIONALISM				
 Responds to parent and staff questions and concerns in an appropriate and timely manner. Actively seeks opportunities for professional development to enhance knowledge and skills related to the services provided. Utilizes peer and supervisor feedback to refine and shape practices. Discusses problems, new ideas, gives & receives feedback respecting and accepting various viewpoints. Meets all contractual responsibilities in a professional manner and demonstrates a strong commitment to the students served and to the profession. Implements an effective system for managing timelines and paperwork associated with the profession. Demonstrates an awareness of one's professional strengths and limitations by efforts to improve or enhance competence through a variety of professional development opportunities. 				
The signature below does not necessarily imply that the employe seen and discussed it with the evaluator and has been provided a c	opy. Employe	ee may attach a s		
Evaluator Signature)ate		
Employee Statement Attached?				

Addendum 11: Verification of Completion of One Year of PDP Form

VERIFICATION OF COMPLETION OF ONE YEAR OF PDP

Employee Name:	
Current Position:	
Location:	School Year:
This verifies that the staff member has completed.	completed one year on PDP and a year-end conference has been
Employee Signature	Date
Evaluator Signature	Date

To be completed and forwarded to Human Resources.

Addendum 12: Verification of Completion of One Year on Focused

Tahoma School District #409

FOCUSED EVALUATION FORM

Employee Name:			
Current Position:			
Location:		School Year:	
			SCORE (1-4
Criterion Selected			
Student Growth		dent growth impact, a rating udent growth inquiry.	of 1 on any student growth
		Overall Rating	
	Distinguished	·	
	Proficient		
	Basic		
	Unsatisfactory		

Addendum 13: Curriculum Documentation Process

Curriculum Review and Documentation Process

Activity		Responsibility
1.	Examine data to prioritize needs to include but not limited to: - Curriculum alignment with state and district standards - Scope and sequence across grade levels - Student achievement and growth	T&L
2.	Meet with grade level / content area to review data and outline process	T&L
3.	Seek staff input and identify lead teachers who will serve on committee to review resources	T&L and Principals
4.	Review resources and develop a work plan to create the District curriculum. Guidance on use of purchased and District developed resources will be provided through pacing guides, implementation frameworks, and unit overviews.	T&L and Lead Teachers
5.	Resource adoption will follow district process as outlined in District Policy and Procedure 2020 (see BoardDocs)	T&L
	If units are being developed and published by T&L collaboratively with Tahoma teachers the process will include: - Identification of outcomes and core skills for the unit - Outline of the unit including lessons, activities, concepts/skills, Tahoma Student Outcomes including Habits of Mind and Thinking Skills - Assignment of lessons to be authored by lead teachers - Write lessons - Submit lessons to T&L for review, editing, and feedback - Confirm revisions with lead writers - Publish to SharePoint	T&L and Lead Teachers
7.	Common assessments will be developed to monitor student achievement and growth.	T&L and Lead Teachers
8.	Implementation of new curriculum will include a structure for teachers to provide feedback. Review of teacher feedback and student achievement and growth data will be used to inform curriculum revisions.	T&L and Lead Teachers

Addendum 14 Building Decision Making Matrix Template					
School:	Most:	_% Date adopted:			
Decisions pre-printed on this chart cannot be changed. The building shall determine who has input, recommending or decision making authority where the chart is blank. The building has the autonomy, within the scope of the building's contractual and legal authority, to add topics through a consensus process.					
TOPIC	INPUT	RECOMMENDATION	DECISION		
Budget - Building Budget (MSOC)					
Budget - Activities Money (Article II.E.1)					
Budget - Leadership Money (Article II.E.2)					
Building Daily Schedule*					
Calendar - Open House, Parent Conferences, Finals, Staff Meetings, Grades/Progress Reports		- 5 - 5 - 5			
Discipline Plan and Sanction Charts		Ad Hoc Citizens Committee	School Board		
Early Release Time for PD Schedule (Article II. B. 6)					
Grade Level Assignments (elementary)			Principal		
Hiring		Principal	School Board		
Mandatory Days - Calendar and Planning of Content					
Master Schedule (secondary)			Principal		
New Courses (secondary)			School Board		
Room Assignments			Principal		
School Safety Plan		Safety Committee	Principal		

Site Plan

Staff Meetings - Planning of Content

Substitute Teachers - Coverage for Shortage

Leadership Team

School Board

Principal

^{*} The overall model of the daily schedule will be set by the School Board. Schools may adjust at the building level within that model taking into consideration the needs of shared staff. See Article II.D.